
The Legislature of Rockland County 

MICHAEL M. GRANT 
Legislator - District 2 

Chair, Budget & Finance Committee 
2nd Vice Chair - Planning & Public Works Committee 

ROLLCALL 

AGENDA 
BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 23,2016 
7:45PM 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES: FEBRUARY 9. 2016 

1. BONDS/PUBLIC WORKS MATTER: 

1PPW) REF. #6803/8973- APPROVING PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 FOR VARIOUS COUNTY 
DEPARTMENTS UNDER VARIOUS NEW YORK STATE OFFICE OF 
GENERAL SERVICES CONTRACTS FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2016 
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY 
FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER [DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
DIVISION OF PURCHASING]. 
(PAUL J. BRENNAN, CPPO, DIRECTOR, DGS-PURCHASING) 
DL#: 2016-00403 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING & PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
ADDITIONAL BACK UP WITH CLERK 

2PPW) REF. #5337- APPROVING RENOVATION AND CONSTRUCTION OF STUDENT UNION 
FOOD SERVICE AREA (ROCKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE) ($110,000). 
(CLIFF L. WOOD, PRESIDENT, RCC) 
DL#: 2016-00419 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING & PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

Rockland County Legislature -II New Hempstead Road- New City, New York 10956 -Tel: (845) 638-5100 
Visit us: http://rocklandgov.com/departments/county-legislature/ 

Like us on Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/rockleg 



BUDGET & FINANCE AGENDA 
FEBRUARY 23,2016 
PAGE2 

3PPW) REF. #6394- APPROVING AN INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT WITH THE TOWN OF 
CLARKSTOWN FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS TO THE TOWN IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,000,000 FOR DEMAREST KILL FLOOD 
MITIGATION PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING ITS EXECUTION BY THE 
COUNTY EXECUTIVE CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 7114 [DRAINAGE AGENCY] 
($1,000,000). 
(CHARLES H. VEZZETTI, CHAIRMAN, DRAINAGE AGENCY) 
DL#: 2016-00426 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING & PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

4PPW) REF. #1519- APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO AND EXTENSION OF AN AGREEMENT IN 
EXCESS OF $100,000 WITH HARRIS BEACH, PLLC FOR LEGAL SERVICES IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE MATTER OF WEST GATE LANDSCAPING, INC. V. 
COUNTY OF ROCKLAND IN THE ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $80,000 FOR A 
TOTAL SUM NOT TO EXCEED $239,000 AND EXTENDING THE PERIOD 
FROM JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND AUTHORIZING 
ITS EXECUTION BY THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE [DEPARTMENT OF LAW] 
($239,000) 
(THOMAS E. HUMBACH, COUNTY ATTORNEY, LAW DEPARTMENT) 
DL#: 2016-00366 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING & PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

5PPW) REF. #7621 - SETTING A DATER FOR A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO THE 
ADOPTION OF A LOCAL LAW AUTHORIZING THE USE OF A BEST VALUE 
AWARD METHODOLOGY FOR PURCHASE CONTRACTS (INCLUDING 
CONTRACTS FOR SERVICE WORK, BUT EXCLUDING ANY PURCHASE 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY FOR THE COMPLETION OF A PUBIC WORKS 
CONTRACT PURSUANT TO ARTICLE EIGHT OF THE LABOR LAW) AS 
AUTHORIZED BY § 103 OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW AND AS 
DEFINED IN § 163 OF THE STATE FINANCE LAW (DEPARTMENT OF 
GENERAL SERVICES-DIVISION OF PURCHASING) 
(PAUL J. BRENNAN, CPPO, DIRECTOR, DGS-PURCHASING) 
DL#: 2015-03802 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING & PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

6PPW) REF. #8390- APPROVING PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 FROM DAN NOLAN INC. 
FOR BURIAL SERVICES AT GARY ONDERDONK VETERANS MEMORIAL 
CEMETERY ON THE GROUNDS OF ROCKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE, 
THE COUNTY SECTION OF HIGHVIEW CEMETERY IN NANUET, AND THE 
FREDERICK LOESCHER VETERANS MEMORIAL CEMETERY IN NEW 
HEMPSTEAD UNDER RFB-RC-2014-101 FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $230,000 FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 16, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 
2016 WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER 
[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES-DIVISION OF PURCHASING] 
($230,000). . 
(PAUL J. BRENNAN, CPPO, DIRECTOR, DGS-PURCHASING) 
DL#: 2015-05776 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PLANNING & PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 



BUDGET & FINANCE AGENDA 
FEBRUARY 23,2016 
PAGE3 

lA) REF. #8709- REFUNDING BOND RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW 
YORK, AUTHORIZING THE REFUNDING OF ALL OR A PORTION OF 
CERTAIN OUTSTANDING SERIAL BONDS OF SAID COUNTY, STATING THE 
PLAN OF REFUNDING, APPROPRIATING AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$17,000,000 THEREFOR, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $17,000,000 
REFUNDING BONDS OF SAID COUNTY OR SO MUCH THEREOF AS MAY BE 
NECESSARY TO FINANCE SAID APPROPRIATION, AND MAKING CERTAIN 
DETERMINATIONS ALL RELATIVE THERETO. 
(STEPHEN F. DeGROAT, CPA, COMM. DEPT. OF BUDGET & FINANCE) 
DL#: 2016-00420 

2. GRANTS/DONATIONS: 

2A) REF. #6704-

2B) REF. #6704-

APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF CONTINUATION GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$164,545 (NCTD) FROM THE NEW YORK STATE OFFICE OF CHILDREN AND 
FAMILY SERVICES TO SUPPORT THE SPECIAL VICTIMS CENTER-CHILD 
ADVOCACY PROGRAM FOR THE PERIOD FEBRUARY I, 2016 THROUGH 
JANUARY 31, 2017 AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF ALL GRANT 
DOCUMENTS BY THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE [OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT 
ATTORNEY] ($164,545). 
(THOMAS P. ZUGIDE, DA, OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY) 
DL#: 2016-00062 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $378,189 (NCTD) 
FROM THE NEW YORK STATE DIVISION OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES 
(NYSDCJS) CRIMES AGAINST REVENUE PROSECUTION (CARP) PROGRAM 
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY I, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF ALL NECESSARY GRANT DOCUMENTS 
BY THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE [OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY] 
($378,189). 
(THOMAS P. ZUGIDE, DA, OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY) 
DL#: 2016-00167 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
ADDITIONAL BACKUP WITH CLERK 



BUDGET & FINANCE AGENDA 
FEBRUARY 23,2016 
PAGE4 

3. BUDGET ITEMS: 

3A) REF. #6704-

3B) REF. #9505-

3C) REF. #9505-

3D) REF. #9505-

APPROPRIATION OF FORFEITURE FUNDS REQUESTED BY THE OFFICE OF 
THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY TO COVER COSTS RELATED TO WIRETAP 
OPERATIONS AND LAW ENFORCEMENT CONSULTATION SERVICES 
[OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY] ($100,000). 
(THOMAS P. ZUGIBE, DA, OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY) 
DL#: 2016-00402 

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF $ __ TO FRED ELLER AMERICAN LEGION 
POST 1447, MONSEY, NEW YORK FOR PATRIOTIC OBSERVANCES IN 2016. 
(HON. ALDEN H. WOLFE, LEGISLATURE) 
LG#: 2016-13 

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF FUNDS IN VARIOUS AMOUNTS TO NON
PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS PURSUANT TO COUNTY LAW§ 224. 
(HONS. ALDEN H. WOLFE, ILAN S. SCHOENBERGER, LEGISLATURE) . 
LG#: 2016-12 

APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF$_ TO RAYMOND W. DEMEOLA VFW POST 
1615 ORANGEBURG, NEW YORK FOR PATRIOTIC OBSERVANCES IN 2016. 
(HON. VINCENT D. TYER, LEGISLATURE) 
LG#: 2016-16 

4. AUTHORIZATIONS: 

4A) REF. #8519- INCREASING NEW YORK STATE CNIL SERVICE EXAMINATION 
APPLICATION FEES 
(JOAN M. SILVESTRI, COMMISSIONER, PERSONNEL) 
DL#: 2015-05796 
DEFERRED l/26/16 B&F 

5. CONTRACTS/AGREEMENTS: 

SA) REF. #9384- APPROVING AGREEMENT WITH HARRIS BEACH, PLLC IN EXCESS OF 
$100,000 FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES UNDER RFP-RC-2015-012 FOR THE 
PERIOD FROM CONTRACT FINALIZATION THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 
WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE YEAR TERMS 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT BY THE COUNTY 
EXECUTNE (DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE) ($120,000) 
(THOMAS E. HUMBACH, COUNTY ATTORNEY) 
DL#: 2016-00185 
DEFERRED AT B&F 1/26/1 AND 2/9/16 



BUDGET & FINANCE AGENDA 
FEBRUARY 23,2016 
PAGES 

6. ALLOCATION/RECLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS: 

6A) REF. #9173/9097- ESTABLISHING ONE POSITION IN THE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 
AND ABOLISHING ONE POSITION IN THE DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL 
HEALTH IN CONNECTION WITH ROCKLAND COUNTY DRUG COURT 
PROGRAM [DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL]. 

7. BIDS: 

(JOAN M. SILVESTRI, COMMISSIONER, PERSONNEL) 
DL#: 2016-00365 

NONE 

8. TRANSFER OF FUNDS/OTHERS: NONE 

9. TAX ITEMS: 

9A) REF. #5614-

9B) REF #5614-

CORRECTION OF 2016 TAX ROLLS TOWN OF RAMAPO KEVLIN LYUDMYLA 
FAMILY TRUST PROPERTY ID# 62.6-1-39, 16 HIDDEN GLENN LANE 
MONSEY, NEW YORK 10952 [DIVISION OF REAL PROPERTY TAX SERVICES] 
(SEAN R. MATHEWS, REAL PROPERTY TAX OFFICE) 
DL#: 2016-00378 

CORRECTION OF 2016 TAX ROLLS TOWN OF ORANGETOWN ARTHUR 
HIGGINS AND LORI HIGGINS PROPERTY ID# 74.06-2-58, 82 DUTCH HOLLOW 
DRIVE ORANGEBURG, NEW YORK 10962 [DIVISION OF REAL PROPERTY 
TAX SERVICES]. 
(SEAN R. MATHEWS, REAL PROPERTY TAX OFFICE) 
DL#: 2016-00377 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 

11. LOCAL LAWS/HOME RULES: NONE 

12. PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: 

12A) REF. #7621 - DISCUSSION: BEST VALUE PROCUREMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES. 
(HON. MICHAEL M. GRANT, LEGISLATURE) 

13. MISCELLANEOUS: NONE 

14. RECEIVE & FILE: NONE 

15. CORRESPONDENCE/REVIEW AND DISCUSSION: NONE 

2/23/16 B & F Agenda 
Darcy Shapin-Greenberg, Proceedings Clerk 

"The Rockland County Legislature is committed to full compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. To that end, the Legislature is committed to 
creating an accessible environment for all. To requeSt accommodations that you may require, please call Damaris Alvarez at 845-638-5248 
(845-708-7899 for TTY/TDD). Please request these accommodations three (3) days in advance so that we can seek to meet your needs." 



Introduced by: 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 

FOR VARIOUS COUNTY DEPARTMENTS 
UNDER V ARlO US NEW YORK STATE 

OFFICE OF GENERAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 

WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER 
[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES- DIVISION OF PURCHASING] 

WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing requests that the County Executive and the 
Legislature of Rockland County approve the following purchases in excess of $100,000 under 
various New York State Office of General Services (NYS OGS) contracts, and their successor 
contracts (if awarded in 2016), for the period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016: 

Contract Title 

Comprehensive 
Bituminous 
Materials (Joint 
and Crack Filler/ 
Sealer) 

Pharmaceuticals -

Vendor State Contract Number 

Vendor Determined Group 31555 - Award 
Quick Quote Process 22787 
NYS OGS Contract 
at the time of 
application 

Med World PC 67018 and successor 
Individual Prescrip- Acquisition Corp. contract 
tions (Jail) 

Estimated Purchases 

$300,000 

$300,000 

WHEREAS, The County is authorized to use NYS OGS contracts for the procurement of 
such goods and services; and 

WHEREAS, All purchases will be made by formal purchase order, encumbering the 
funds in advance of the services provided, and shall be in accordance with the approved 2016 
Budgets for each County Department which purchases off of these contracts; and 

WHEREAS, Local Law No. 18 of 1996 provides for the Legislature to "approve the 
execution of all contracts in excess of $100,000 entered into by the County"; and 



WHEREAS, The and Committees of the Legislature have met, 
considered and approved this resolution, now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves the purchases in 
excess of $100,000 under various New York State Office of General Services (OGS) contracts, 
.and their successor contracts (if awarded in 2016), for the period January 1, 2016 through 
December 31,2016 in the amounts listed: 

Contract Title Vendor State Contract Number Estimated Purchases 

Comprehensive Vendor Determined Group 31555- Award $300,000 
Bituminous Quick Quote Process 22787 
Materials (Joint NYS OGS Contract 
and Crack Filler/ at the time of 
Sealer) application 

Pharmaceuticals - MedWorld PC 67018 and successor $300,000 
Individual Prescrip- Acquisition Corp. contract 
tions (Jail) 
;and be it further 

RESOLVED, That all purchases shall be made by formal purchase order, encumbering 
the funds in advance of services provided, subject to the approval ofthe Director of Purchasing, 
and shall be in accordance with the approved 2016 Budgets for each County Department which 
purchases off of these contracts .. 

LHG:dc 
2016-00403 
2/3/16 



Introduced by: ·Referral No. 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING RENOVATION AND CONSTRUCTION OF 

STUDENT UNION FOOD SERVICE AREA 
(ROCKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE) 

($110,000) 

WHEREAS, Rockland Community College has a need to undertake renovation 
and construction of an area on the first floor of the Student Union building which will 
provide food and beverage service to both day and evening students; and 

WHEREAS, The renovation will include plumbing, electrical and wall 
construction which will be undertaken by approved County contractors; and 

WHEREAS, The estimated total cost of repairs is $110,000; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 5 of 2016, the Rockland Community College 
Board of Trustees unanimously approved the renovation and construction, half of the 
total cost of which is to be reimbursed by the SUNY Office for Capital Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, In order to receive reimbursement from SUNY Capital Facilities a 
resolution is needed from the Rockland County Legislature approving this request; and 

WHEREAS, The Committees of the Legislature have met, 
considered and approved this resolution, now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That County Executive and the Legislature of Rockland County 
hereby approve Rockland Community College's renovation and construction of the 
StndentUnion Building's Food Service area in the estimated amount of$110,000. 

VWJ:dc 
2016-00419 
2-5-16 



Introduced by Referral No. {;fJCJf 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING AN INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT 

WITH THE TOWN OF CLARKSTOWN 
FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS TO THE TOWN 

IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,000,000 
FOR THE DEMAREST KILL FLOOD MITIGATION PROJECT 

AND AUTHORIZING ITS 
EXECUTION BY THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

CAPITAL PROJECT NO. 7114 
[DRAINAGE AGENCY] 

($1,000,000) 

WHEREAS, Capital Project No. 7114 was created to provide reimbursement to the Town 
of Clarkstown for the County's share of work on the Dernarf)st Kill 
Flood Mitigation Project; and 

WHEREAS, The work is to be performed to reduce erosion and flooding along the 
Demarest Kill, a County regulated stream;. and · 

. WHEREAS, The project was designed by a consultant retained by the Town, and the 
Town subsequently received bids and awarded a contract for construction; and 

WHEREAS, The County and the Town agree that the County shall provide proportional 
contribution of 40%, the total contribution to this project not to exceed $1,000,000, and that the 
Town will pay the balance of the project costs; and · 

WHEREAS, The Town proposes to construct the Demarest Kill Flood Mitigation Project 
ahd'"the County proposes to reimliurse the Town for a portion of the funds to be expended by the 
Town for the project and each desires to enter into an agreement setting forth their understanding 
regarding this project; and 

WHEREAS, Article 5-G of the General Municipal Law authorizes municipal governments 
.-to~ perfonn together thaLwhich each government is authorized to perform individually and 

requires that any intermunicipal cooperation agreement be approved by each participating 
municipal corporation by a majority vote of the voting strength of its governing body; and 

WHEREAS, The Chairman of the Drainage Agency requests that the County Executive and 
the Legislature of Rockland County approve an interrnunicipal agreement with the Town of 
Clarkstown for the reimbursement to the Town of costs for the County's share of the work on the 
Project in an amount not to exceed $1 ,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, Sufficient funding for this agreement has been authorized in the 2016 Adopted 
Capital Budget, Capital Project No. 71 i 4 ; and 



WHEREAS, The Committees of the Legislature have met, considered and 
approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland Co'unty hereby approves an intermunicipal 
agreement between the County and the Town of Clarkstown for the reimbursement to the Town 
of costs for the County's share of the work on the Project in an aniount not to exceed $1,000,000, 
and authorizes its execution by the County Executive, subject to the approval of the County 
Attorney; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That sufficient funding for this agreement has been authorized in the 2016 
Adopted Capital Budget, Capital Project No. 7114. 

TS:dc 
2016·00426 
2-4·16. 



Introduced by: Referral No. /5/ q 
RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO AND EXTENSION OF 
AN AGREEMENT IN EXCESS OF $100,000 

WITH HARRIS BEACH, PLLC 
FOR LEGAL SERVICES. IN CONNECTION WITH THE MATTER OF 

WEST GATE LANDSCAPING, INC. V. COUNTY OF ROCKLAND 
IN THE ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $80,000 FOR. A TOTAL SUM 

NOT TO EXCEED $239,000 AND EXTENDING 
THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 
AND AUTHORIZING ITS EXECUTION BY THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

[DEPARTMENT OF LA WJ · 
($239,000) 

WHEREAS, In 2010 Harris Beach LLC was retained by the County of Rockland at the 
request of its Department of Highways in connection with the defense of the County in the 
matter of West Gate Landscaping, Inc. v. County of Rockland under Index No. 8310/07; and 

WHEREAS, By that action, West Gate Landscaping Inc. ("West Gate") alleges the 
wrongful termination of a contract with the County dated December 4, 2001 in the amount of 
$908,000, and is seeking approximately $5 million dollars for wrongful termination and delay 
damages; and 

WHEREAS, Harris Beach's current contract with the County, as amended and extended, 
is in the amount of$239,000; and 

WHEREAS, To date, Harris Beach has engaged .in substantial pre-trial discovery; and 

WHEREAS, Harris Beach also has prepared and filed a voluminous motion for summary 
judgment, seeking the dismissal of this action which was granted by the Supreme Court but 
reversed fact by the Appellate Division due to the existence of an issue of; and 

WHEREAS, Harris Beach has engaged in multiple negotiations to settle this action, but 
Plaintiff has not sought to engage in reasonable settlement negotiations; and 

WHEREAS, This litigation is entering the trial stage; arid 

WHEREAS, It is necessary to use outside counsel in this matter due to the size and 
complexity of the litigation and the lack of dedicated litigation staff to properly handle the 
matter; and 

WHEREAS, The additional $80,000 absent unanticipated circumstances, is intended to 
cover the expense of this matter through trial; and 



WHEREAS, The County Attorney and the Commissioner of the Department of 
Highways recommend to the County Executive and the Legislature of Rockland County to 
approve an amendment and extension of the agreement with Harris Beach, PLLC, 445 Hamiltpn 
Avenue, Suite 1206, White Plains New York 10601, for ]ega! services in connection with the 
matter of West Gate Landscaping, Inc. v. County of Rockland in the additional amount of 
$80,000 for a total sum not to exceed $239,000 and an extension for the period from January 1, 
2016 through December 31, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, Local Law No. 18 of 1996 provides for the Legislature to approve the 
"execution of all contracts in excess of $100,000 entered into by the County"; and 

WHEREAS, Sufficient funding for this agreement exists in the Rockland County 
Drainage Agency Capital Project No. 7049; and 

WHEREAS, The 
Legislature have met, considered and 
therefore be it 

Committees of the 
approved this resolution; now 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves an amendment 
and extension of the agreement in excess of $100,000 with Harris Beach, PLLC, 445 Hamilton 
Avenue, Suite 1206, White Plains New York 10601, for legal services in connection with the 
matter of West Gate Landscaping, Inc. v. County of Rockland under Index No. 8310/07 in the 
additional amount of $80,000 for a total sum not to exceed $239,000 and an extension for the 
period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, and authorizes its execution by the 
County Executive, subject to the approval of the County Attorney; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That sufficient funding for this to the agreement exists in the Rockland 
County Drainage Agency Capital Project No. 7049. 

TH:mf 
2016-00366 
2/1116 
REV. 2-2-16 



Introduced by: Referral No. 

RESOLUTION NO OF 2015 
SETTING A DATE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING 

WITH RESPECT TO THE ADOPTION OF A LOCAL LAW 
AUTHORIZING THE USE OF A BEST VALUE A WARD METHODOLOGY 

FOR PURCHASE CONTRACTS (INCLUDING CONTRACTS FOR 
SERVICE WORK, BUT EXCLUDING ANY PURCHASE CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY FOR THE COMPLETION OF A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE EIGHT OF THE LABOR LAW) 

AS AUTHORIZED BY§ 103 OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW AND 
AS DEFINED IN § 163 OF THE STATE FINANCE LAW 

(DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES-
DIVISION OF PURCHASING) . 

WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing recommends to the County Executive 
and the Legislature of Rockland County that the County adopt a local law authorizing the 
use of a Best Value Award methodology for purchase contracts (including contracts for 
service work, but excluding any purchase contracts necessary for the completion of a 
public works contract pursuant to article eight of the labor law) as authorized by § 103 of 
the General Municipal Law and as defined in § 163 of the State Finance Law; and 

. WHEREAS, A public hearing was previously held on December 17, 2013 and no 
vote was taken on this proposed local law; and 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature has met, considered 
and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby sets the -.,--,--c-

day of , 2015 at p.m. for a public hearing to provide for 
a local law authorizing the use of a Best Value A ward methodology for purchase 
contracts (including contracts for service work, but excluding any purchase contracts 
necessary for the completion of a public works contract pursuant to article eight of the 
labor law) as authorized by § 103 of the General Municipal Law and as defined in § 163 
of the State Finance Law. 

LHG:dc 
2015-03802 
9-29-15 



DRAFT 
LOCAL LAW NO. OF 2015 

COUNTY OF ROCKLAND 
STATE OF NEW YORK 

(Introduced by: Hon. ) 

A local law authorizing the use of a Best Value Award methodology for purchase contracts 
(including contracts for service work, but excluding any purchase contracts necessary for the 
completion of a public works contract pursuant to article eight of the labor law) may be awarded 
on the basis of best value, as authorized in section one hundred three of the general municipal 
law and as defined in section one hundred sixty-three of the state finance law. 

Be it enacted by the legislature of the county of Rockland, New York, as follows: 

Section 1. Name oflocallaw 

This local law shall be koown as the "Rockland County Best Value Contracting Law." 

Section 2. Findings and Intent 

The State Legislature and Governor amended General Municipal Law§ 103 (A08692/S06117) 
on January 27, 2012 to provide local governments greater flexibility in awarding contracts by 
authorizing the award of purchase contracts, including contracts for service work, on the basis of 
best value. The state legislation requires Counties with a population of less than one million to 
pass a local law authorizing the use of the best value award process. 

(From Assembly Bill Memo A08692) - Enactment of this legislation provides additional 
procurement options to localities in ways that may ex]Jedite the procurement process and result 
in cost savings. The "best value" standard for selecting goods and services vendors, including 
janitorial and security contracts,· is critical to efforts to use strategic sourcing principles to 
modernize the supply chain and ensure that taxpayers obtain the highest quality goods and 
services at the lowest potential cost, while also ensuring fairness to all competitors. 

The federal government, approximately half of the states and many localities have added best 
value selection processes to their procurement options, in recognition of these advantages. With 
the increased complexity of the goods and services that municipalities must obtain in order to 
serve taxpayers, it is critical to consider selection and evaluation criteria that measure factors 
other than cost in the strictest sense. 

Taxpayers are not well served when a public procurement res)l[ts in low unit costs at th.e outset, 
but ultimately engenders cost escalations due to factors such as inferior quality, poor reliability 
and difficulty of maintenance. Best value prOcurement links the procurement process directly to 
the municipality's perforniance requirements, incorporating selection factors such as useful 
lifespan, quality and options and incentives for more timely performance and/or additional 
services. 



Even if the initial expenditure is higher, considering the total value over the life of the 
procurement may result in a better value and long-term investment of public funds. Best value 
procurement also encourages competition and, in turn, often results in better pricing, quality and 
customer service. Fostering healthy competition ensures that bidders will continue to strive for 
excellence in identifying and meeting municipalities' needs, including such important goals as 
the participation. of small, minority and women-owned businesses, and the development of 
enviromnentally-preferable goods and service delivery methods. Best value procurement will 
provide much-needed flexibility in obtaining important goods and services at favorable prices, 
and will reduce the time to procure such goods and services. 

Section 3. Definitions 

"Best value" means the basis for awarding purchase contracts (including contracts for service 
work) to the offerer which optimizes quality, cost and efficiency, among responsive and 
responsible offerers. Such basis shall reflect, wherever possible, objective and quantifiable 
analysis. Such basis may also identify a quantitative factor for offerors that are small businesses 
or certified minority- or women-owned business enterprises as defined in subdivisions one, 
seven, fifteen and twenty of section three hundred ten of the executive law to be used in 
evaluation of offers for awarding of contracts for services. 

Section4. Requirements 

A. Purchase contracts (including contracts for service work, but excluding any purchase 
contracts necessary for the completion of a public works contract pursuant to article eight 
of the labor law) may be awarded on the basis of best value, as defmed in section one 
hundred three of the general municipal law and as authorized in section one hundred 
sixty-three of the state finance law. 

B. Where the basis for award is the best value offer, the Director of Purchasing shall. 
docmnent, in the procurement record and in advance of the initial receipt of offers, the 
determination of the evaluation criteria, which whenever possible, shall be quantifiable, 
the process to be used in the determination of best value and the marmer in which the 
evaluation process and selection shall be conducted. 

C. In assessing best value, non-price factors can be considered when awarding the purchase 
contract. Non-price factors can include, but are not limited to, reliability of a product, 
efficiency of operation, difficulty/ease of maintenance, useful lifespan, ability to meet 
needs regarding timeliness of performance, and experience of a service provider with 
similar contracts. The basis for a best value award, however, must reflect, whenever 
possible, objective and quantifiable analysis. Such basis may also identify a quantitative 
factor for offerers that are small businesses or certified minority- or women-owned 
business enterprises as defined in subdivisions one, seven, fifteen and twenty of section 
three hundred ten of the executive law to be used in evaluation of offers for awarding of 
contracts for services. 



D. The Director of Purchasing shall select a formal competitive procurement process and 
document its determination in the procurement record. The process shall include, but is 
not limited to, a clear statement of need; a description of the required specifications 
governing performance and related factors; a reasonable process for ensuring a 
competitive field; a fair and equal opportunity for offerers to submit responsive offers; 
and a balanced and fair method of award. Where the basis for the award is best value, 
documentation in the procurement record shall, where practicable, include a 
quantification of the application of the criteria to the rating of proposals and the 
evaluation results or, where not practicable, such other justification which demonstrates 
that best value will be achieved. 

E. The solicitation shall prescribe the minimum specifications or requirements that must be 
met in order to be considered responsive and shall describe and disclose the general 

· manner in which the evaluation and selection shall be conducted. The solicitation shall 
identify the relative importance and/or weight of cost and the overall evaluation criterion 
to be considered by the County in its determination of best value. 

F. The Director of Purchasing shall develop any additional procedures necessary to govern 
the award of contracts on the basis of best value. These procedures shall be included in 
the · Rockland County Procurement Policy and reviewed annually by the County 
Legislature in conjunction with its annual review and approval of the County 
Procurement Policy. 

Section 5. Severability 

If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this local law or the application 
tbereof to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance shall be 
adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such order or 
judgment shall not affect, impair, effect or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined 
in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this local law or 
in its application to the person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance 
directly involved in the controversy in which such order or judgment shall be rendered. 

Section 6. Effective Date 

This local law shall take effect immediately upon filing with the New York State Secretary of 
State. 

LHG:dc 
2015-03863 
8/24/15 



Introduced by: Referral No. ~Oq 0 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING PURCHASES IN EXCESS OF $100,000 

FROM DAN NOLAN INC. 
FOR BURIAL SERVICES AT GARY ONDERDONK 

VETERANS MEMORIAL CEMETERY ON THE GROUNDS OF ROCKLAND 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE, THE COUNTY SECTION OF HIGHVIEW 

CEMETERY IN NANUET, AND THE FREDERICK LOESCHER 
VETERANS MEMORIAL CEMETERY IN NEW HEMPSTEAD 

UNDER RFB-RC-2014-101 
FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $:230,000 

FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 16, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016 
WITH ALL PURCHASES TO BE MADE BY FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER 
[DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES- DIVISION OF PURCHASING] 

($230,000) 

WHEREAS, The. Director of Purchasing requested bids for burial services at Gary 
Onderdonk Veterans Memorial Cemetery on the grounds of Rockland Conununity 
College in Suffern, New York, the County section of Highview Cemetery in Nanuet, 
New York, and The Frederick Loescher Veterans Memorial Cemetery in New 
Hempstead, New York, under RFB-RC-2014-101 (the "RFB") for a three-year period; 
and 

WHEREAS, The solicitation was issued with over. 57 contractors notified and two 
returning pricing; and 

WHEREAS, The lowest responsible bidder was Dan Nolan Inc., 508 Route 303, 
Orangeburg, New York 1 0962; and 

WHEREAS, On January 16, 2015, Dan Nolan Inc., 508 Route 303, Orangeburg, 
New York 1 0962 was awarded the contract for the required burial services for the period 
January 16, 2015 through January 15, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, Funds are reimbursed to the County of Rockland by the families or 
funeral directors, however, the County of Rockland pays the fees for any indigent burials; 
and 

WHEREAS, To date, the total encumbered amount against this contract is 
$99,800 and the Department of Facilities Management has estimated that usage has 



increased an average of 200 burials per year at an average cost of $700 each, therefore, an 
additional amount of $130,200 will be needed to cover expenditures for services through 
June 30, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing reconunends to the County Executive 
and the Legislature of Rockland County that the County approve purchases in excess of 
$100,000 from Dan Nolan Inc. for burial services at Gary Onderdonk Veterans Memorial 
Cemetery on the grounds of Rockland Community College in Suffern, New York, the 
County section of Highview Cemetery in Nanuet, New York, and The Frederick 
Loescher Veterans Memorial Cemetery in New Hempstead, New York under RFB-RC-
2014-101 for a total amount not to exceed $230,000 for the period January 16, 2015 
through June 30, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, All purchases are initiated by formal purchase order, subject to the 
approval of the Director of Purchasing; and · 

WHEREAS, Sufficient funding for these purchases is provided for in the 2015 
and 2016 Adopted Budget of the Department of General Services (Dept. 1241, Line 
E5060); and 

WHEREAS, Local Law No. 18 of 1996 provides for the Legislature to approve 
the "execution of all contracts in excess of$100,000 entered into by the County"; and 

WHEREAS, The and Conunittees of the Legislature have 
met, considered and approved this resolution, now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves 
purchases in excess of $100,000 with Dan Nolan Inc., 508 Route 303, Orangeburg, New 
York 10962, for burial.services at Gary Onderdonk Veterans Memorial Cemetery on the 
grounds of Rockland Community College in Suffern, New York, the County section of 
Highview Cemetery in Nanuet, New York, and The Frederick Loescher Veterans 
Memorial Cemetery in New Hempstead, New York, under RFB-RC-2014-101 in an 
amount not to exceed $230,000 for the period January 16, 2015 through June 30, 2016, 
and authorizes all purchases to be made by formal purchase order, subject to the approval 
of the Director of Purchasing; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That sufficient funding for these purchases is provided for in the 
2015 and 2016 Adopted Budget of the Department of General Services (Dept. 1241, Line 
E5060). 

LHG:vma 
2015-05776 
1/4116 
revised 2/8116 



v 

RESOLUTION NO. OF2016 

REFUNDING BOND RESOLUTION DATED FEBRUARY_, 2016 

REFUNDING BOND RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK, 
AUTHORIZING THE REFUNDING OF ·ALL OR A PORTION . OF CERTAIN 
OUTSTANDING SERIAL BONDS OF SAID COUNTY, STATING THE PLAN OF 
REFUNDING, APPROPRIATING AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $17,000,000 
THEREFOR, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $17,000,000 REFUNDING BONDS OF 
SAID COUNTY OR SO MUCH THEREOF AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO FINANCE SAID 
APPROPRIATION, AND MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS ALL RELATIVE 
THERETO. 

(Adopted)----'------' 2016 

Recitals 

Whereas, the County of Rockland, New York (herein called "County"), has 

heretofore issued on June 26, 2008 its $24,000,000 Public Improvement (Serial) Bonds, 2008 

(herein called the "2008 Bonds"), now outstanding in the principal amount of $18,175,000; (the 

outstanding amount of the 2008 Bonds shall be hereinafter collectively referred to as the 

"Outstanding Bonds"); such bonds bearing interest at the rates and on the dates, and being 

subject to prior redemption as set forth in each such respective bond; and 

Whereas, Section 90.10 ofthe Local Finance Law, constituting Chapter 33-a of 

the Consolidated Laws of the State of New York (herein called "Law"), permits the County to 

refund all or a portion of the outstanding unredeemed maturities of such bonds by the issuance of 

new bonds, the issuance of which will result hi present value debt service savings for the County; 

now, therefore, 

2467655v1 



. THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF THE COUNTY OF ROCKLAND,. 

NEW YORK, HEREBY RESOLVES (by the favorable vote of not less than two-thirds of 

the voting strength of said Legislature) AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. In this resolution, the following definitions apply, unless a different 

meaning clearly appears from the context: 

2467655v1 

a. "Bond To Be Refunded" or "Bonds To Be Refunded" means all or a 

portion of the Outstanding Bonds of the County. 

b. "Escrow Contract" means the contract to be entered into by and between 

the County and the Escrow Holder pursuant to Section 9 hereof. 

c. "Escrow Holder" means the bank or trust company designated as such 

pursuant to Section 9 hereof. 

d. "Present Value Savings" means the dollar savings which result from the 

issuance of the Refunding Bonds computed by discounting the principal 

and interest payments on both the Refunding Bonds and the Bonds To Be 

Refunded from the respective maturities thereof to the date of issue of the 

Refunding Bonds at a rate equal to the effective interest cost of the 

Refunding Bonds. The effective interest cost of the Refunding Bonds 

shall be that rate which is arrived at by doubling the semi-armual interest 

rate (compounded semi-annually), necessary todiscount the debt service 

payments on the Refunding Bonds from the maturity dates thereof to the 

date of issue of the Refunding Bonds and to the bona fide initial public 



offering price including estimated accrued interest, or, if there is no public 

offering, to the price bid including estimated accrued interest. 

e. "Redemption Date" means June 15, 2018 with respect to the Bonds to be 

Refunded, or such later date as may be determined by the Commissioner 

of Finance in the fmal refunding financial plan. 

f. "Refunding Bond" or "Refunding Bonds" means all or a portion of the 

$17,000,000 bonds of the County of Rockland, authorized pursuant to 

Section 2 hereof. 

g. "Refunding Bond Amount Limitation" means an amount of Refunding 

Bonds sufficient to pay the sum of (i) the principal amount of Bonds To 

Be Refunded, (ii) the aggregate amount of unmatured interest payable on 

each Bonds To Be Refunded to and including the applicable Redemption 

Date, (iii) redemption premiums payable on such Bonds To Be Refunded 

as of such applicable Redemption Date, as hereinabove referred to in the 

Recitals hereof, and (iv) costs and expenses incidental to the issuance of 

the Refunding Bonds, including the development of the refunding 

financial plan, and of executing and performing the terms and conditions 

of the Escrow Contract and all fees and charges of the Escrow Holder as 

referred to in Section 9 hereof. 

Section 2. The Legislature of the County (herein called "Legislature"), hereby 

authorizes the refunding of the Bonds To Be Refunded of the County, more particularly 

described and referred to in the Recitals hereof, and appropriates an amount not to exceed · 

2467655v1 



$17,000,000 therefor to accomplish such refunding. The plan of financing said appropriation 

includes the issuance of not to exceed $17,000,000 Refunding Bonds and the levy and collection 

of a tax upon all the taxable real property within the County to pay the principal of and interest 

on said Refunding Bonds as the same shall become due and payable. Bonds of the Co\mty in the 

maximum principal amount not to exceed $17,000,000 are hereby authorized to be issued 

pursuant to the provisions of the Law. The proposed financial plan for the refunding in the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "refunding fmancial plan") prepared for the County by Capital 

Markets Advisors, LLC and hereby accepted and approved, includes the deposit. of all the 

proceeds of said Refunding Bonds with an Escrow Holder pursuant to an Escrow Contract as 

authorized in Section 9 hereof, the payment of all costs incurred by the County in connection 

with said refunding from such proceeds, and the investment of a portion of such proceeds by the 

Escrow Holder in certain obligations, the principal of and interest, together with the balance of 

such proceeds to be held uninvested, shall be sufficient to pay (1) the principal of and interest on 

the Bonds To Be Refunded becoming due and payable on and prior to the Redemption Date and 

(2) the principal ofand premium on the Bonds To Be Refunded to be called for redemption prior 

to maturity on the Redemption Date. _ 

Section 3. The Bonds To Be Refunded referred to in Section 1 hereof are the 

aggregate unmatured outstanding balance of a consolidated issue of bonds originally issued 

pursuant to Bond Resolution· No. 230 of 2008 of the County, adopted on May 6, 2008 and 

authorizing the financing of incidental costs resulting from taxes not being paid by and the tax 

certiorari proceedings involving Mirant New York, Inc. In accordance with the refunding 

fmancial plan, the Refunding Bonds authorized in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed 

$17,000,000 shall mature in amounts and at dates to be determined. The Commissioner of 

2467655v1 



Finance, the chief fiscal officer of the County, is hereby authorized to approve all details of the 

final refunding financial plan not contained herein. 

Section 4. The issuance of the Refunding Bonds will not exceed the Refunding 

Bond Amount Limitation. The maximum period of probable usefulness ("PPU") of the Bonds to 

be Refunded, commencing at the date of issuance of the Bonds to be Refunded, is twenty (20) 

years. 

Section 5. The aggregate amount of estimated Present Value Savings is set forth 

in the proposed refunding financial plan attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Section 6. The Refunding Bonds may be sold at public or private sale. 

(a) If the Refunding Bonds are sold at private sale, the Commissioner of Finance, 

as the chief fiscal officer of the County, is hereby authorized to execute a purchase contract on 

behalf of the County for the sale of said Refunding Bonds, provided that the tenns and 

conditions of such sale shall be approved by the State Comptroller. 

(b) If the Refunding Bonds are sold at public sale pursuant to Section 57.00 of 

the Law, the Commissioner of Finance is hereby authorized . and direct to prepare or have 

prepared a Notice of Sale, which shall be published at least once in "THE BOND BUYER," 

published in the City of New York, not less than five (5) nor more than thirty (30) daysprior to 

the date of said sale. 

(c) Prior to the issuance of the Refunding Bonds the Commissioner of Finance 

shall file with the Legislature a certificate approved by the State Comptroller setting forth the 

Present Value Savings to the County resulting from the issuance of the Refunding Bonds 

2467655v1 



(d) in connection with such sale, the County hereby authorizes the preparation of 

an Official Statement and approves its use in connection with such sale, and, further, consents· to 

the distribution of a Preliminary Official Statement prior to the date said Official Statement is 

executed and available for distribution. 

(e) the Commissioner of Finance is hereby further authorized and directed to take 

any and all actions necessary to accomplish. said refunding, and to execute any contracts and 

agreements for the purchase of and payment for services rendered or to be rendered the County 

in connection with said refunding including the preparation of the refunding finan1ial plan 

referred to in Section 2. 

Section T Each of the Refunding Bonds authorized by this resolution shall 

contain the recital of validity prescribed by Section 52.00 of the Law and said Refunding Bonds 

shall be general obligations of the County payable as to both principal and interest by a general 

tax upon all the taxable real property within the County. The faith and credit of the County are 

hereby irrevocably pledged to the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on said 

Refunding Bonds and provision shall be made annually in the budget of the County for (a) the 

amortization and redemption of the Refunding Bonds to mature in such year and (b) the payment 

of interest to be due and payable in such year. 

Section 8. Subject to the provisions of this resolution and of the Law, and 

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 21.00, 50.00, 56.00, 90.10 and 168.00 of the Law, the 

powers and duties of the Legislature relative to (i) prescribing the terms, form and contents of the 

Refunding Bonds, (ii) the sale and issuance of the Refunding Bonds, (iii) the making of 

determinations to issue Refunding Bonds and provide for substantially level or declining debt 

service, (iv) authorizing and executing agreements for credit enhancement of the Refunding 

2467655v1 



Bonds, and (v) executing the Escrow Contract described in Section 9 and the Official Statement 

referred to in Section 6, are hereby delegated to the Commissioner of Finance as the chief fiscal 

officer of the County. 

Section 9. Prior to the issuance of the Refunding Bonds the County shall contract 

with a bank or trust company located and authorized to do business in New York State for the 

purpose of having such bank or trust company act as the Escrow Holder of the proceeds, 

inclusive of any premium from the sale of the Refunding Bonds, together with all income 

derived from the investment of such proceeds. The Escrow Contract shall contain such terms 

and conditions as shall be necessary in order to accomplish the refunding financial plan, 

including provisions for the Escrow Holder without further authorization or direction from the 

County, except as otherwise provided therein, (a) to make all required payments of principal, 

interest and redemption premiums to the appropriate paying agent with respect to the Bonds To 

Be Refunded, (b) to pay costs and expenses incidental to the issuance of the Refunding Bonds, 

including the development of the refunding financial plan, and of executing and performing the 

terms and conditions of the Escrow Contract and all of its fees and charges as the Escrow Holder, 

(c) at the appropriate time or times to cause to be given on behalf of the County the notices of 

redemption authorized to be given pursuant to Section 12 hereof, and (d) to invest the moneys 

held by it consistent with the provisions of the final refunding financial plan. The Escrow 

Contract shall be irrevocable and shall constitute a covenant with the holders of the Refunding 

Bonds. 

Section 10. The proceeds, inclusive of any premmm, from the sale of the 

Refunding Bonds, immediately upon receipt, shall be placed in escrow by the County with the 

Escrow Holder in accordance with the Escrow Contract. All moneys held by the Escrow Holder 

2467655v1 



shall be invested only in direct obligations of the United States of America or in obligations the 

principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of 

America, which obligations shall mature or be subject to redemption at the option of the holder 

thereof not later than the respective dates when such moneys will be required to make payments 

in accordance with the refunding financial plan. Any such moneys remaining in the custody of 

the Escrow Holder after the full execution of the Escrow Contract shall be returned to the County 

and shall be applied by the County only to the payment of the principal of or interest on the 

Refunding Bonds then outstanding. 

Section 11. That portion of such proceeds from the sale of the Refunding Bonds, 

together with interest earned thereon, which shall be required for the payment of the principal of 

and interest on the Bonds To Be Refunded, including any redemption premiums, in accordance 

with the refunding financial plan, shall be irrevocably committed and pledged to such purpose 

and the holders of the Bonds To Be Refunded shall have a lien upon such moneys and the 

investments thereof held by the Escrow Holder. The pledge and lien provided for herein shall 

become valid and binding upon the issuance of the Refunding Bonds and the moneys and 

investments held by the Escrow Holder shall immediately be subject thereto without any further 

act. Such pledge and lien shall be valid and binding against all parties having claims of any kind 

in tort, contract or otherwise against the County irrespective of whether such parties have notice 

thereof. Neither this resolution, the Escrow Contract, nor any other instrument relating to such 

pledge and lien, need be filed or recorded. 

Section 12. In accordance with the provisions of Section 53.00 and of paragraph 

h of Section 90.10 of the Law, the Legislature hereby elects to ca!l in and redeem all the Bonds 

To Be Refunded which are subject to prior redemption according to their terms on the 

2467655v1 



Redemption Date. The sum to be paid therefor on the Redemption Date shall be the par value 

thereof, the accrued interest to the Redemption Date and the redemption premiums, if any. The 

Escrow Holder is hereby authorized and directed to cause notice(s) of such calls for redemption 

to be given in the name of the County by mailing such notice(s) to the registered holders of the 

Bonds To Be Refunded which are subject to prior redemption at least thirty days prior to such 

Redemption Date .. Upon the issuance of the Refunding Bonds, the election to call in and redeem 

the Bonds To Be Refunded subject to prior redemption on the Redemption Date and the direction 

to the Escrow Holder to cause notice thereof to be given as provided in this section shall become 

irrevocable and the provisions of this section shall constitute a covenant with the holders, from 

time to time, of the Refunding Bonds, provided that this section may be amended from time to 

time as may be necessary to comply with the requirements of paragraph a of Section 53.00 of the 

Law, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

Section 13. The validity of the Refunding Bonds may be contested only if: 

(a) Such obligations are authorized for an object or purpose for which said 
County is not authorized to expend money; or 

(b) The provisions of law which should be complied with at the date of 
publication of this resolution are not substantially complied with 

and an action, suit or proceeding contesting such validity is commenced within twenty 
days after the date of such publication; or 

(c) Such obligations are authorized in violation of the provisions of the 
Constitution. 

Section 14. The Clerk to the Rockland County Legislature is hereby directed to 

publish the foregoing bond resolution, in summary, in the "ROCKLAND JOURNAL NEWS", 

West Nyack, New York and the "ROCKLAND COUNTY TIMES', published by Citizen 

Publishing Corp., Nanuet, New York, each of said newspapers having been designated the 

2467655v1 



official newspapers of the County for such publication, together with a notice in substantially the 

fonn prescribed in Section 81.00 of the Local Finance Law of the State of New York. 

Section 15. This resolution shall take effect in accordance with Section C2.02 of 

. the Rockland County Charter. 

* * * 
The adoption of the foregoing resolution was seconded by _______ _ 

and duly put to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

The resolution was declared adopted. 

* * * 

2467655v1 



Exhibit A 

Proposed Refunding Financial Plan 

2467655v1 



CERTIFICATE 

I, Laurence 0. Toole, Clerk to the Legislature, State of New York, HEREBY 

CERTIFY that the foregoing annexed extract from the minutes of a meeting of the Rockland 

County Legislature duly called and held on February_, 2016, has been compared by me with 

the original minutes as officially recorded in my office in the Minute Book of said County 

Legislature and is a true, complete and correct copy thereof. 

(SEAL) 

2467655v1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

corporate seal of said County this _ day of 

February, 2016. 

Laurence 0. Toole 
Clerk to the Legislature 



NOTICE 

The refunding bond resolution, a summary of which is published herewith, has 
been adopted by the County Legislature on the_ day of February, 2016, and the validity of the 
obligations authorized by such resolution may be hereafter contested only if such obligations 
were authorized for an object or purpose for which the County of Rockland, New York, is not 
authorized to expend money or if the provisions of law which should have been complied with as 
of the date of publication of this Notice were not substantially complied with, and an action, suit 
or proceeding contesting such validity is commenced within twenty days after the publication of 
this Notice, or such obligations were authorized in violation of the provisions of the Constitution. 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 · 

Laurence 0. Toole 
Clerk to the Legislature 

REFUNDING BOND RESOLUTION DATED------'' 2016 

REFUNDING BOND RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK, 
AUTHORIZING THE REFUNDING OF ALL OR A PORTION OF CERTAIN 
OUTSTANDING SERIAL BONDS OF SAID COUNTY, STATING THE PLAN OF 
REFUNDING, APPROPRIATING AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $17,000,000 
THEREFOR, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $17,000,000 REFUNDING BONDS OF 
SAID COUNTY OR SO MUCH THEREOF AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO FINANCE SAID 
APPROPRIATION, AND MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS ALL RELATIVE 
THERETO. 

object or purpose: to finance the cost of refunding all or a portion of the outstanding 
unredeemed maturities of the County's Public Improvement (Serial) 
Bonds, 2008 by the issuance of new bonds, the issuance of which will 
result in present value debt service savings for the County, all as more 
particularly described in the refunding financial plan prepared for the 
County by Capital Markets Advisors, LLC 

amount of obligations to be issued: not to exceed $17,000,000 

A complete copy of the Refunding Bond Resolution and the refunding financial plan 
sunnnarized above shall be available for public inspection during normal business hours at the 
office of the Clerk to the Rockland County Legislature, in New City, New York. 

Dated: February_, 2016 
New City, New York 

2467655v1 



Rockland County, New York ~-

$16,505,000 Refunding Serial Bonds- 2015 
Prevailing 'AAA' Rates plus Rockland December 2015 Spreads - 1.26.16 

Refunding Summary 
Dated 04/01/20161 Delivered 04/01/2016 

Sources Of Funds 
Par ~OU!l! of Bonds 

Uses Of Funds 
Total_Un_derwriter's Discount- (0.500%)_ 
Costs Oflssuance 
Gross Bond Insurance Premium ( 75.0 bp) 
pe_posit ~o Net Cash Escrow Fund 
~O~!ldin& ~O_u_n£ - ·- -

Total Uses 

Flow of Funds Detail 

State and Local Government Series (SLGS) rates for 
Date of OMP Candidates -- --- -

Net Cash Escrow Fund Solution Method 
Total Cost of Investments 
Interest Eamin~s@ 0.880% 
Total Draws 

Issues Refunded And Call Dates 

2008 Bonds 

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 

Net?V Cashflow Savings@. 2.147%(~C) 
(;onting~ncy or ~.o_llnding ~aunt 
Net Present Value Benefit 

NetPVBenefit /$14, ~95,000 Refunded Principal_ 
Net PV Benefit I $!6,505,000RefundingPrincipal 

2016 Refunding -1.26 .. 16 J 2007 Bonds J 1127/2016 J 10:02AM 

Capital Markets Advisors, LLC 

Part 1 of 2 

$16,505,000,00 

.. $16,505,000.00 

82,525.00 
- 105,000.00 

143,820.85 
16,170,964.19 

2,68996 

$16,SOS,OOO.OO 

1/26/2016 

Net Funded 
$16,170,964.19 

. 301,473.31 
$16,472,437.50 

6/15/2018 

1,077,821.33 
2,689.96 

-- $1,080,5l1.~9 

7.303% 
6.547% 

Independent Fmanc1al AdVISOIS Page 1 



Rockland Connty, New York 

$16,505,000 Refunding Serial Bonds- 2015 
Prevailing 'AAA' Rates plus Rockland December 2015 Spreads- 1.26.16 

Refunding Summary 
Dated 04/01/20161 Delivered 04/01/2016 

Bond Statistics 

Average Life 
Aver~~ <;:o1:1pon 

Net Interest Cost (N1C) 
B~n~ Yiel~ for Arbi~ra~e Purpos'?s 
True Inte~t Cost (TIC)_ 
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 

2016Refunding-1.26.16120.07Bonds J112712016110:02AM 

Capital Markets Advisors, LLC 

Part 2 of 2 

7.494 Years 
2.1595626% 

2.2262830% 
2.2751795% 
2.2203509% 
2.1469524% 

Independent F1nanc1al Advisors Poge 2 



Rockland County, New York 

$16,505,000 Refunding Serial Bonds- 2015 
Prevailing 'AAA' Rates plus Rockland December 2015 Spreads - 1.26.16 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal 
06/15/2016 350,000.00 
12/15/2016 
06/15/2017 260,000.00 
12/15/2017 
06/15/2018 265,000.00 
12/15/2018 
06/15/2019 1,460,000.00 
12/15/2019 
06/15/2020 1,475,000.00 
12/15/2020 
06/15/2021 1,490,000.00 
12/15/2021 
06/15/2022 1,510,000.00 
12/15/2022 
06/15/2023 _1,535,000.00 
12/15/2023 
06/15/2024 . 1,560,000.00 
12/15/2024 
06/15/2025 1,595,000.00 
12/15/2025 
06/15/2026 1,630,000.00 
12115/2026 
06/15/2027 1,665,000.00 
12/15/2027 
06/15/2028 1,710,000.00 

Total $16,505,000.00 

Yield Statistics 

Bond Year Dollars 
Aye!~ge.L~fe .. 
A vera~e Coupon 

Net Interest Cost (N1C) 

T~e..!'.l.!e!~~~--~~st_ (TIC) __ 
:Bon~ Y~e!d for Arbitrage Purposes 
All.!n.cl~siveCost (A!C) 

IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 
Weighted Average Maturity 

2016Refundlng~1.26.16120(17Bonds I1/27/2016110:02AM 

Capital Markets Advisors, LLC 

Coupon 

0.770% 

0.820% 

1.03Q% 

1.160% 

1.340% 

1.500% 

1.690% 

1.910% 

2.110% 

2.300% 

2.440% 

2.540% 

2.640% 

Interest 

65,418.67 
157,779.00 
157,779.00 
156,713.00 
156,713.00 
155,348.25 
155,348.25 
146,880.25 
146,880.25 

136,997.75 
136,997.75 
125,822.75 
125,822.75 
l13,063.25 

. 113,063.25 
98,404.00 
98,404.00 
81,946.00 
81,946.00 

. 63,603.50 
63,603.50 
43,717.50 
43,717.50 
22,572.00 
22,572.00 

$2,671,113.17 

Total P+l 

415,418.67 
157,779.00 
417,779.00 
156,713.00 

. 421,71300 
155,348.25 

1,615,348.25 
146,880.25 

1,621,880.25 
.136,99U5 
1,626,997.75 

125,822.75 
1,635,822.75 

113,063.25 
1,648,063.25 

98,404.00 
1,658,404.00 

81,946.00 
1,676,946.00 

. 63,603.50 
1,693,603.50 

43,717.50 
1,708,717.50 

22,572.00 
1,732,572.00 

$19,176,1!3.17 

$123,687.69 
7.494 Years 

2.1595626% 

2.2262830% 
2.2203509% 
2.2751795% 
2.1469524% 

2.1595626% 
7.494 Years 

Independent Fmancral Advisors Page 3 



Rockland County, New York 

$16,505,000 Refunding Serial Bonds- 2015 
Prevailing 'AAA' Rates plus Rockland December 2015 Spreads- 1.26.16 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+l Existing D/S 
12/31/2016 
12/31/2017 
12/3112018 
12/3112019 
12/3112020 

.12/3Jii021 
12/3112022 
12/31/2023 
12/3112024 
12/31/2025 
12/31/2026 
12/31/2027 
12/31/2028 

573,197.67 
574,492.00 
577,061.25 

1,762,22850 
_1,758,878.00 .. 

1,752,82050 
1,748,886.00 
1,746,467.25 
1,740,350.00 
1,740,549.50 
1,737,321.00 
1,731,289.50 
1,732,572.00 

Total $19,176,113.17 

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 

Gross PV Debt Service Savings 

Net PV Cashflow Savin~@ 2.!47%(AIC) 

Contingency or Rounding Amount 
Net Present Value Benefit 

NetPV Benefit/ $!4,795,000Refunded Principal 
Net PVBenefit/ $!6,505,000 Refunding Principal 

Refunding Bond Information 

Refun4ingDated Date 
Refunding Delivery Date 

1,212,687.50 
1,202,962.50 
1,196,325.00 

$3,611,975.00 

2016 Refunding -1.26.16 I 2007 Bonds I 1/27/2016 I 10:02 AM 

Capital Markets Advisors, LLC 

Net New D/S Old Net D/S 

1,785,885.17 1,883,662.50 
1,777,454.50 1,873,937.50 
1,773,386.25 1,867,300.00 
1,762,228.50 1,858,637.50 
1,758,878.00 .. 1,852,837,~0 
1,752,820.50 1,849,675.00 
1,748,886.00 1,844,037.50 
I ,746,467 25 1,840,812.50 
1,740,350.00 1,834,887.50 

. 1,740,54950 - .. 1,836"037.50_ 
1,737,321.00 1,833,628.75 
1,731,28950 1,827,217.50 
1,732,572.00 1,826,501.25 

$22,788,088.17 $24,029,172.50 

Savings 
. 97,777.33 
96,483.00 
93,913.75 
96,409.00 
93,959.50 
96,854.50 
95,151.50 
94,345.25 
94,537.50 
95,488.00 
96,307.75 
95,928.00 

. 93,929.25 

$1,241,084.33 

1,077,821.33 

!,077,82!.33 

2,689.96 
$I,080,5IL29 

7.303% 
6.547% 

4/01120!6 
4/01120!6 

Independent Financial AdviSOiS Page1 



·I RocklaJ!d County, New York 
! $16,505,000 Refunding Serial Bonds- 2015 

Prevailing 'AAA' Rates plus Rockland December 2015 Spreads - 1.26.16 

Escrow Fund Cashflow 

Date Principal Rate 
04/0112016 
06/!512016 307,183.00 0.260% 
12/!512016 266,036.00 0.420% 
0611512017 266;825.00 0.480% 
12/!512017 .. 267,465.00 0.740% 
0611512018 15,063,455.00 0.890% 

Total $16,170,964.00 

Investment Parameters 

InvestJn.e~t Mod~l WV,GI_t:;,_or ~ec!lrities] _ 
pef~ult investment yiel.d t~get 

Cash Depo~it 
Cost oflnvestmen~s Purchased with Bond Proceeds 
Total Cost oflnvestments 

Target Cost oflnvestments at bond y!eld 
Actual positive or (negative). arbitrage 

Yield to Receipt 
)'iel~ fo~ A[bitr<l_S;~.J>urpos~s 

State and Local Government Series (SLGS) rates for 

2016 Refunding -1.26.16 1 20~7 Bonds 1 1/27/2016 J 10:02AM 

Interest 

28,304.42 
69,452.16 
68,662.37 
68,02L99 
67,032.37 

$301,473.31 

Capital Markets Advisors, LLC 

Receipts Disbursements 

0.19 
335,487.42 335,487.50 
335,488.16 335,487.50 
335,487.37 335,487.50 

. 335,486:99 335,487.50 
15,130,487.37 15,130,487.50 

$16,472;437.50 $16,472,437.50 

Cash Balance 

0.19 
0.11 
0.77 
0.64 
0.13 

Securities 
Bond Yield 

0.19 
16,170,964.00 

$16,170,964.19 

$15,707,402.63 
(463,561.56) 

0.8802194% 
2.2751795% 

1/26/2016 

Independent F~nanc1al Advisors Page 5 



Rockland County, New Yo.rk 

$16,505,000 Refunding Serial Borids- 2015 
Prevailing 'AAA' Rates plus Rockland December 2015 Spreads- 1.26.16 

Escrow Summary Cost 

+Accrued 
Maturity Type Coupon Yield $Price Par Amount Principal Cost Interest · =Total Cost 

Escrow 
06/15/2016 SLGS-Cl 0.260% 0260% 
12/15/2016 SLGS-Cl 0.420% 0.420% 
06/15/2017 SLGS-NT 0.480% 0.480% 
12/15/2017 SLGS-NT 0.740% 0.740% 
06/15/2018 SLGS-NT 0.890% 0.890% 

Subtotal 
Total 

Escrow 
Cttsh [)eposit 
'COst ofmVestffients Purchased with Bond Proceeds 
'TO till CO~t Of Investmellts 

Delivery Date 

2016Refunding-.1.26.16 12007Bonds 11/27/2016 I 10:02AM 

100.0000000% 307,!83 
100.0000000% 266,036 
100.0000000% 266,825 
100.0000000% 267,465 
100.0000000% 15,063,455 

$16,170,964 
$16,170,964 . 

307,183.00 
266,036.00 
266,825.00 
267,465.00 

15,063,455.00 
$16,170,964.00 
$16,170,964.00 

307,183.00 
266,036.00 
266,825.00 
267,465.00 

15,063,455.00 
$16,170,964.00 
$16,170 964.00 

0.19 
16,170,964.00 

_$16,170,964.19 

4/01/2016 



Rockland Coun~:..:.w,_Y=or:.:k=-----
$16,505,000 Refunding Serial Bonds- 2015 
Prevailing 'AAA' Rates plus Rockland December 2015 Spreads- 1.26.16 

Primary Purpose Fund Proof Of Yield@ 0.8802194% 

Date Cashflow PV Factor Present Value 
04/01/2016 . l.OOOOOOOx 
06/15/2016 335,487.42 0.9981963x 334,882.29 
12/15/2016 335,488.16 0.9938224x 333,415.63 
06/15/2017 335,487.37 0.9894676x 331,953.89 
12/15/2017 ..... 335,486,99 0.9851319x .. }30,498.95 
06/15/2018 15,130,487.37 0.9808153x 14,840,213.24 

Total $16,472,437.31 $16,170,964.00 

Composition Of Initial Deposit 

Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 

Adjusted Cost of Investments 

2016 Refunding ·1.26.16 I 2007 Bonds I 1/27/2016 I 10:02 AM 

Capital Markets Advisors, LLC 

Cumulative · 
PV 

334,882.29 
668,297.92 

1,000,251.80 
1,330,750.76 

16,170,964.00 

. 16,170,964.00 

16,170,964.00 

Independent Financtal Advtsots Page 7 



Rockland County, New York 

$16,505,000 Refunding Serial Bonds- 2015 

Prevailing 'AAA' Rates plus Rockland December 2015 Spreads - 1.26.16 

Summary Of Bonds Refunded 

of Maturity 
Issue Maturity Type Bond Coupon Value 

Dated 6/15/2008 I Delivered 6/26/2008 
2008 Bonds 06/15/2019 Serial Coupon 4.500% 1,215,000 
2008 Bonds 06/l5/2020 Serial COupon 4.500% 1,265,000 
2008 Bonds 06115/2021 Serial Coupon 4.500% 1,320,000 
2008 Bonds 06/l5/2022 Serial Coupon 4.500% 1,375,000 
2008 Bonds 06/l5/2023 Serial Coupon 4.500% 1,435,000 
2008 Bonds 06115/2024 Serial Coupon 4.500% 1,495,000 
2008 Bonds 06/15/2025 Serial Coupon 4.500% 1,565,000 
2008 Bonds 06115/2026 Serial Coupon 4.550% 1,635,000 
2008 Bonds 06115/2027 Serial Coupon 4.600% 1,705,000 
2008 Bonds 06/15/2028 Serial Coupon 4.650% 1,785,000 

Subtotal $14,795,000 
Total $14,795,000 

2016 Refunding -1.26.16 ] 2007 Bonds ] 1127/2016 ] 10:02 AM 

Call Date Call Price 

06/15/2018 100.000% 
06/15/2018 100.000% 
06/15/4018 100.000% 
06/15/2018 100.000% 
06115/2018 100.000% 
06/15/2018 100.000% 
06/15/2018 100.000% 
06/15/2018 100.000% 
06/15/2018 100.000% 
06/15/2018 100.000% 



Rockland County, New York 

$24,000,000 Public Improvement Serial Bonds, 2008 

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Refunded Refunded 
Date Bonds Interest DIS To Call Principal Coupon Interest Refunded DIS 

06115/2016 335,487.50 335,487.50 4.500% 335,487.50 335,487.50 
12115/2016 335,487.50 335,487.50 335,487.50 335,487.50 
06115/2017 335,487.50 335,487.50 4.500% 335,487.50 335,487.50 
12/15/2017 335,487.50 335,487.50 335,487.50 335,487.50 
06115/2018 14,795,000.00 ,. 335,487.50 .15,130,487,50 4.500% 335,48!,~0. 335,487.50 
12/15/2018 335,487.50 335,487.50 
06/15/2019 1,215,000.00 4.500% 335,487.50 1,550,487.50 
12/15/2019 308,150.00 . 308,150.00 
06115/2020 1,265,000.00 4.500% 308,150.00 1,573,150.00 
12115/2020 279,68750 .. 279,6.87.50 
06/15/2021 1,320,000.00 4.500% 279,687.50 1,599,687.50 
12/15/2021 249,987.50 249,987.50 
06/15/2022 1,375,000.dO 4.500% 249,987.50 1,624,987.50 
12/15/2022 219,050.00 219,050.00 
06/15/2023 1,435,000.00 4.500% 219,050.00 1,654,050.00 
12/15/2023 186,762.50 186,762.50 
06/15/2024 1,495,000.00 4.500% . 186,762.50 1,681,762.50 
12/15/2024 153,125.00 153,125.00 
06115/2025 1,565,000.00 4.500% 153,125.00 1,718,125.00 
12/15/2025 117,912.50 117,912.50 
06/15/2026 1,635,000.00 4.550% 117,912.50 1,752,912.50 
12/15/2026 80,716.25 80,716.25 
06115/2027 1,705,000.00 4.600% 80,716.25 1,785,716.25 
12/15/2027 41,501.25 41,501.25 
06115/2028 . 1,785,000.00 4.650% 41,501.25 ,1,826,501.25 

Total $14,795,000.00 $1,677,437.50 $16,472,437.50 $14,795,000.00 $5,622,197.50 $20,417,197.50 

Yield Statistics 

-~~e_dat~_for ~vg. Life & ~v&. Coupon .. CaJcul~ti!)n 4/01/2016 
Average Life 8.058 Years 
~ ':'e~ag~ _C_oupo~ 4.5504390% 
Weighted j\v~r~ !Vl•"'rity(ParBasis) 8.058 Years 

Refunding Bond Information 

Refunding Dated Date 4/01/2016 
Refunding Delivery Date 4/01/2016 

2008 Bonds! SINGLE PURPOSE I 1/27/2016 I 10:02AM 

Capital Markets Advisors, LLC 
Independent Fmancial Advisors Page 9 



EXTRACT OF MINUTES 

Meeting of the County Legislature of 

the County of Rockland, New York 

February_, 2016 

* * * 
A regular/special meeting of the County Legislature of the County of Rockland, 

New York, was held at the Legislative Chambers, in New City, New York, in said County, on 

February_, 2016, at o'clock P.M. (Prevailing Time). 

The following Legislators were present: 

There were absent: 

Also present: Laurence 0. Toole, Clerk to the Legislature 

* * * 

Legislator -'----------offered the following resolution and 

moved its adoption: 

277193 2467655v1 



Introduced by: Referral No. 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF CONTINUATION GRANT 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $164,545 (NCTD) 
FROM THE NEW YORK STATE 

OFFICE OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES TO SUPPORT THE 
SPECIAL VICTIMS CENTER-CIDLD ADVOCACY PROGRAM 

FOR THE PERIOD FEBRUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2017 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF ALL GRANT 

DOCUMENTSBYTHECOUNTYEXECUTIVE 
[OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY] 

($164,545) 

WHEREAS, The County Executive has been advised that a $164,545 continuation grant 
from the New York State Office of Children and Family Services has been awarded to the 
District Attorney's Office to support the Special Victims Center-Child Advocacy Program for 
the period February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2017; and · 

WHEREAS, No County tax dollars (NCTD) are required to accept said grant; and 

WHEREAS, It is necessary to appropriate these funds to the proper accounts; and 

WHEREAS, The 
considered and 

Committee of the Legislature has met, 
approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of the County of Rockland hereby approves the 
acceptance of a$164,545 continuation grant from the New York State Office of Children and 
Family Services to support the Special Victims Center-Child Advocacy Program for the period 
February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2017, and authorizes the execution of all necessary grant 
documents by the County Executive, subject to the approval of the County Attorney; and be it 
further 



RESOLVED, That no County tax dollars. (NCTD) are required to accept this grant; and 
be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Commissioner of Finance is hereby authorized to increase the 
following accounts in the amounts indicated: 

Increase Approp. Acct. (Credit): 
A-DA-1165 -GA40-E2010 

-E3030 
-E3130 
-E4020 
-E4040 
-E4090 
-E4098 
-E4140 
-E4600 

Increase Est. Rev. Acct. (Debit): 
A-DA-1165 -GA40-R3380 

AFR:dc 
2016-00062 
2-1-16 

GENERAL FUND- 2016 

Furniture & Fixtures 
Medical Supplies 
Office Supplies 
Rental of Equipment 
Travel 
Fees for Services, Non-Employee 
Services from Other County Depts. 
Conferences & Seminars 
Telephone 

Public Safety Grant(s) 

16,895 
1,000 
5,000 
4,560 
5,000 

92,350 
10,000 
10,000 
19,740 

164,545 



Introduced by: []], .. \! n11u a~\ ~~ u~ 
I b ! 0, '. . . .- Ul . ""-'-'· Referral No. {lj:J lJ 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $378,189 (NCTD) 
FROM THE NEW YORK STATE 

DIVISION OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES (NYSDCJS) 
CRIMES AGAINST REVENUE PROSECUTION (CARP) PROGRAM 

FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 
AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF ALLNECESSARY 

GRANT DOCUMENTS BY THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
[OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY] 

($378,189) 

WHEREAS, The Office of the District Attorney has informed the County Executive and 
· the Rockland County Legislature that it has been awarded a $378,189 Crimes Against Revenue 

Prosecution (CARP) grant from the New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services 
(NYSDCJS) for the period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, This is a joint program between the New York State Division of Criminal 
Justice Services and the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance to identify, 
investigate and prosecute crimes against revenue; and · 

WHEREAS, One of the goals of this program is to have perpetrators of these crimes pay 
back the funds which were stolen from the State, and then use the recoveries to continue to fund 
the program; and 

WHEREAS, A portion of this grant ($125,000) has already been budgeted in the Office 
of the District Attorney's 2016 Budget for personnel costs, as well as grant revenue; and 

WHEREAS, The remaining portion of this grant ($253,189) is to be appropriated and 
estimated in this resolution's funding clause for the Office of the District Attorney; and 

WHEREAS, No County tax dollars (NCTD) are required to accept this grant; and 

WHEREAS, It is necessary to appropriate these funds to the proper accounts; and 

WHEREAS, The 
considered and 

Committees of the Legislature have met, 
approved this resolution; now, therefore, be it 



RESOLVED, A portion of this grant ($125,000) has already been budgeted in the Office 
of the District Attorney's 2016 Budget for personnel costs, as well as grant revenue; and 

RESOLVED, The remaining portion of this grant ($253,189) is to be appropriated and 
estimated in this resolution's funding clause for the Office of the District Attorney; and 

RESOLVED, That no County tax dollars (NCTD) are required to accept this grant; and 
be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Commissioner of Finance is hereby authorized to increase the 
following accounts in the amounts indicated: 

Increase Approp. Acct. (Credit): 
A-DA-1165-GA41-E3130 

-E4090 

Increase Est. Rev.Acct. (Debit): 
A-DA-1165-GA41-R3380 

AFR:dl 
2016-00167 
2/9/16 

GENERAL FUND- 2016 

Office Supplies 
Fees for Services, Non-Employee 

Public Safety Grant(s) 

3,189 
250,000 

253,189 



Introduced by: Referral No. W 70-{ 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROPRIATION OF FORFEITURE FUNDS 

REQUESTED BY THE OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
TO COVER COSTS RELATED TO WIRETAP OPERATIONS 
AND LAW ENFORCEMENT CONSULTATION SERVICES 

[OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY] 
($100,000) 

WHEREAS, The Office of the District Attorney has requested that $100,000 offorfeiture 
funds in balance sheet account A-8905 (Reserved for the DTF/RIRC - Crime Proceeds) be 
appropriated to the District Attorney's Budget to cover costs related to wiretap operations and 
law enforcement consultation services; and 

WHEREAS, There is no expiration date required for use of these funds; and 

WHEREAS, The adoption of this resolution does not involve the expenditure of any 
County funds since sufficient funds to cover the total $100,000 appropriation exists within said 
balance sheet account; and 

WHEREAS, The County Attorney advises that this is an authorized use of forfeiture 
funds under applicable rules; and 

WHEREAS, The Connnittees of the Legislature have met, considered 
and approved this resolution; now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Connnissioner of Finance is hereby authorized to increase the 
following accounts in the amounts indicated: 

GENERAL FUND- 2016 

Increase Arorop. Acct. (Credit): 
A-DA-3190-FA05-E4500 Forfeiture Funds- Services 

Increase Approp. Fund Bal. (Debit): 
A-UNC-9990-R5990 (Reserved for the DTF/RIRC- Crime Proceeds) 

AR:vma 
2016-00402 
2/9/16 

100,000 

100,000 



DRAFT 

Introduced by: 

/' .r-
a,;.,cfJ 

Referral No. fV · 
Hon. Alden H. Wolfe, Sponsor 

RESOLUTION NO OF 2016 
APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF$ TO FRED ELLER AMERICAN 

LEGION POST 1447,MONSEY, NEW YORK 
FOR PATRIOTIC OBSERVANCES IN 2016 

WHEREAS, the Rockland County Legislature has set aside in the 2016 Budget and 
designated an account for funding of patriotic observances; and · 

WHEREAS, the Fred Eller American Legion Post 1447, Monsey, New York, is 
contracting with the County of Rockland to conduct patriotic observances in 2016, for the 
citizens of Rockland County in memory of all those who have served and/or died for their 
Country; and 

WHEREAS, the Committee has met, considered and by 
a vote approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, that the Legislature of Rockland County hereby appropriates the sum of 
$ for providing patriotic observance events in Rockland County, in calendar year 2016; 
and be it further ;. 

RESOLVED, that the Commissioner of Finance is hereby authorized to increase and 
decrease the following accounts in the amounts indicated: 

Increase Approp. Acct.: 
A-CA- 7589-5010 

·Decrease Approp. Acct.: 
A-LEG-1010-5042 

ELY/cs 
LG2016-13; 2/16/162 

GENERAL FUND 

Fred Eller American Legion Post 144 7 
Post Office Box 127 
Monsey, New York 10952 

Patriotic Observances 

$0000 

$0000 



DRAFT 
Introduced by: 

Hon. Alden H. Wolfe, Sponsor 
Hon. Ilan S. Schoenberger, Sponsor 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 

Referral No. 
, 2016 

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF FUNDS IN V ARlO US AMOUNTS TO NON-PROFIT . 
ORGANIZATIONS PURSUANT TO COUNTY LAW§ 224 

WHEREAS, New York State's County Law§ 224 permits the Legislature of the County 
of Rockland to contract with non-profit organizations and other corporations, associations and 
agencies within the County and within adjoining Counties for the purposes described in County 
Law§ 224; and, 

WHEREAS, As reflected in the adopted Budget for fiscal year 2016, the Legislature of 
the County of Rockland has chosen to provide funds to the following non-profit organization in 
the following amounts from the noted budget line: 

1) Rockland County YMCA $23,970.00 CA-7577 

; and 
WHEREAS, the above listed organization seeks to perform the services described in the 

Schedule A to the Memorandum Receipt for 2016 - a sample of which is annexed hereto and 
incorporated into this resolution as Schedule A - that shall be signed and filed with the Clerk to 
the Legislature in exchange for said funds; and, 

WHEREAS, County funds are being provided by this resolution which funds shall be 
used to effect the services set forth in the Schedule A's to the Memorandum Receipt that shall be 
signed and filed with the Clerk to the Legislature; and, 

WHEREAS, The amount the Legislature shall make available to the above listed 
organizations will be for services to be provided between January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016; 
and, · 

WHEREAS, Funding for the payment of these services has been allocated in the above 
noted budget line; and 

WHEREAS, the sums to be provided shall be paid to the above listed organization on or 
about April30, 2016 and October 31, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature have met, considered 
and approved this resolution, now, therefore be it 



RESOLVED, That the Legislature of the County of Rockland hereby authorizes the 
payment of funds to the following non-profit organization from the noted budget line: 

I) Rockland County YMCA $23,970.00 CA-7577 

; and 

RESOLVED, That the sum shall only be provided for services to be rendered and under 
the conditions set forth in the Memorandum Receipt for 2016 - a sample of which is annexed 
hereto and incorporated into this resolution as Schedule A - which shall be signed and filed with 
the Clerk to the Legislature; and be it further, 

RESOLVED, The sums to be provided shall be paid to the above listed organization on 
or about April30, 2016 and October 31, 2016, and be it further; 

RESOLVED, That any funds unused by the above listed organization for the services to 
be rendered and under the conditions set forth in the Memorandum Receipts, which shall be 
signed and filed with the Clerk to the Legislature, shall be refunded to the County; and be it 
further, 

RESOLVED, That the aforementioned payments shall not be disbursed until such a time 
as the Rockland County Commissioner of Finance, receives a Memorandum Receipt, in the form 
set forth and which shall be signed and filed with the Clerk to the Legislature, signed by the 
principal officer of and disbursing officer of the individual non-profit organization; and be it 
further, 

RESOLVED That the. Memorandum Receipt shall require a verified account of the 
individual non-profit organization's disbursements related to the services that have been provided 
in accordance with the Memorandum Receipt and this resolution, with verified or certified 
vouchers describing the services to be rendered, attached to such account and to otherwise 
comply with the terms of the Memorandum Receipt and this resolution; and be it further, 

RESOLVED, That any funds allocated by this resolution and which remain unused by the 
above listed organization through December 31, 2016, shall be refunded to the County of 
Rockland; and be it further, 

RESOLVED, That the Rockland County Commissioner of Finance shall disburse, in 
accordance with this resolution, the sum indicated herein from the above noted budget line of the 
adopted Budget for fiscal year 2016. 

LG-201-12 
ELY 
2/16/16 



Federal ID# **-******* 
2016 

MEMORANDUM RECEIPT 

SCHEDULE "A" 

THIS Memorandum Receipt dated this __ day of , 2016, 
acknowledges the conditions of funding, from the COUNTY OF ROCKLANQ, a 
municipal corporation of the State of New York, having its principal office at 11 New 
Hempstead Road, New City, New York 10956, hereinafter described as "COUNTY," to 
the Recipient, -----------------------------, a New York State not-for-profit corporation, 
with offices located at ---------------------------, hereinafter called ''the RECIPIENT," in 
the manner following: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the RECIPIENT is a not-for-profit corporation which promises to 
provide services described in Schedule "A" with the funding hereby provided by the 
COUNTY attached and made a part hereof, and 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY desires such services as RECIPIENT provides, for the 
benefit of County residents, and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of Rockland County appropriated the necessary 
funds for the RECIPIENT, to be disbursed in accordance with Section 224 of the New 
York State County Law for maintenance and operation of a public museum and the 
maintenance and operation of a professional symphony or philharmonic orchestra, 
musical festival, or vocal, dance, drama, or performing arts troupe, group or activity of 
any kind of nature, purposes provided for therein, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the RECIPIENT agrees that, the following requirements 
must be met for the receipt of the funding provided: 

1. TERM: The services to be rendered by RECIPIENT under this Memorandum 
Receipt shall commence January 1, 2016 and terminate December 31, 2016. 

2. SERVICES: The RECIPIENT shall provide services as set forth in Schedule 
"A", annexed and made part of this Memorandum Receipt. The RECIPIENT warrants 
and represents that it and its employees, agents and servants possess the skills and 
experience to render the services provided for this Memorandum Receipt. The funds 
provided by the Legislature and described below shall be expended on the services 
described in Schedule "A" 

1 



3. FUNDING: The COUNTY will provide to the RECIPIENT a sum notto 
exceed ---------------------- DOLLARS and 00/100 ($--------.00) to permit the 
RECIPIENT to perform the services set forth in the attached Schedule "A". 

Payment will be made only when a certified and signed voucher in a form is 
approved and authorized by the Commissioner of Finance. Payments will be made upon 
the following schedule: 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

#of Payments 

First Payment On or About April 30th 

Second Payment On or About October 31st 

All financial statements and proofs of insurance, or other documentation required in this 
Memorandum Receipt must be on file with the Commissioner of Finance before any 
payment will be made. Failure to comply with any provision under this Memorandum 
Receipt may result in the delay or forfeiture of the aforementioned payments. 

This Memorandum Receipt requires a verified account of---------------------------
disbursements related to . the services that have been provided in accordance with the 
Memorandum Receipt and this resolution, with verified or certified vouchers describing 
the services rendered, attached to such account; and it is further, 

4. CONDITIONS AFFECTING FUNDING: The funding offered by the 
COUNTY and described herein is offered entirely at the COUNTY's discretion. It is 
neither a contract nor a general obligation of the COUNTY. Neither the full faith and 
credit nor the taxing power of the COUNTY are pledged to the payment of any amount 
due or to become due under this Memorandum Receipt. It is understood that neither this 
Memorandum Receipt nor any representation by any COuNTY employee or officer 
creates any obligation to appropriate or make monies available for the purpose of the 
Memorandum Receipt. This Memorandum Receipt shall not be effective unless the 
monies to be paid hereunder by the COUNTY are appropriated in and remain in 
the COUNTY budget for the purpose described herein. Furthermore, neither this 
Memorandum Receipt nor the appropriation described herein shall constitute any 
obligation expressed or implied that the County of Rockland will continue to 
appropriate funding in the future. 

5. FINANCIAL RECORDS/ AUDIT: The RECIPIENT shall mirintain records of 
all its financial transactions, including all expenses and disbursements, which relate to 
this Memorandum Receipt. Such records shall be kept in accordance with GAAP 
(Generally Accepted Accounting Practices) and/or County record-keeping requirements, 
and each transaction shall be documented. Such records shall be made available to the 

2 



COUNTY for inspection or audit upon request. The RECIPIENT shall file with the 
Commissioner of Finance such reports and· statements as are required to be filed 
with the Attorney General of the State of New York pursuant to Article 7-A of the 
Executive Law and Section 8-1.4 of the Estates, Powers and Trust Law, on or before 
the first day of July after the close of such fiscal year. Upon the failure to file reports 
and statements no further compensation or fee for services will be due to the RECIPIENT 
unless or until fmancial statements have been filed with the Rockland County Department 
ofFinance. · 

6. INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS: The RECIPIENT agrees to defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the COUNTY and its respective officers, employees and 
agents from and against all claims, actions and suits, including but not limited to suits 
claiming that the appropriation to the RECIPIENT was illegal, and will defend the 
COUNTY and its respective officers, employees and agents, at its own cost and at no cost 
to the COUNTY, in any suit, action or claim, including appeals, for personal injury to, or 
death of, any person, or loss or damage to property arising out of, or resulting from, the 
activities or omissions of the RECIPIENT that arise from the services described in 
Schedule "A", to the fullest extent permitted by law. These indemnification provisions 
are for the protection of the COUNTY and its respective officers, employees and agents 
only, and shall not establish, of themselves, any liability to third parties. The provisions 
of this section shall survive the termination of this Memorandum Receipt and the 
expiration term for which funding is provided. 

7. RECIPIENT IS INDEPENDENT OF THE COUNTY: The RECIPIENT is an 
independent entity, providing services on its own cognizance and for its own purposes. 
RECIPIENT covenants and agrees that it, its agents, servants and/or employees, will 
neither hold itself out as, nor claim to be an employee, servant or agent of the COUNTY, 
and that it, its agents and employees will not make any claim, demand or application to or 
for any right or privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the COUNTY, 
including, but not limited to, Workers' Compensation coverage, unemployment insurance 
benefits, Social Security coverage or retirement membership or credit. 

8. COMPLIANCE WITH ANTIDISCRIMINATION LAWS: RECIPIENT 
agrees that it shall not discriminate on the basis of race, creed, sex, ethnic background, 
age or national origin, and shall comply with all Federal, State and Local Anti
Discrimination Laws and resolutions, including, but not limited to the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, Title VII ofthe Civil Rights Act of 1964; the Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act; the Equal Pay Act; the Immigration and Reform Act; the Genetic 
Information Reform Act; the New York State Human Right's Law and; the Rockland 
County Human Rights Law. Also, RECIPIENT agrees that its services will be available 
to all residents of Rockland County. 

9. INJURY, PROPERTY DAMAGE: The RECIPIENT shall be responsible for 
all damages and/or injury to life and property due to, or resulting from, the activities or 
omissions of the RECIPIENT, its agents or employees in connection with its work, 
activities or services described in Schedule "A" of this Memorandum Receipt. The 

3 



RECIPIENT represents and warrants that its agents and employees possess the 
experience, knowledge and skills and independence necessary for the work/services to be 
performed in connection with this Memorandum Receipt. 

10. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: The RECIPIENT shall, at its own cost 
and expense, procure and maintain insurance to cover its work, services, employees, 
owners, servants and/or agents described in Schedule A, which insurance shall include, 
but may not be limited to those policies indicated: 

{X} A Commercial General Liability Insurance not less than $1,000,000 
(One Million) for each occurrence and a general aggregate not less 
than $2,000,000 (Two Million) per project 

{ X} B Automobile Liability Insurance not less than $1,000,000 
(One Million) Combined Single Limit for each accident 

{ X} C Excess Umbrella Liability Insurance not less than $2,000,000 
(Two Million) over General Liability, Employers Liability (if not 
unlimited on the workers compensation policy), Auto Liability and 
Professional Liability, if required, for each occurrence and a general 
aggregate not less than $2,000,000 (Two Million) 

{X} D Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance 
in accordance with statutory requirements of the NYS Workers 
Compensation Law 

{ X} E Disability Insurance in accordance with provisions and requirements 
of the NYS Disability Law 

{ } F Professional Liability Insurance (or Errors and Omissions or 
Malpractice) not less than $1,000,000 (One Million) for each claim, or 
if not included on the excess umbrella the limits should equal 
$1,000,000 plus the required excess limit 

{ X} * All other insurance as required by law 

{ X} A check mark in the box indicates that the type of insurance specified IS 
REQUIRED 

The RECIPIENT warrants and represents to the County of Rockland that it has 
sufficient funds to satisfY the amount of the self insured retention limit (deductible) 
required of each liability policy as it applies to this Memorandum Receipt, and that said 
amount is available to settle, compromise, or pay any suit or claim for negligence, gross 
negligence, medical malpractice, or intentional acts or omissions, made against it arising 
out of or during the term of this Memorandum Receipt. The RECIPIENT shall provide, 
at the request of the County of Rockland, proof or guarantee of financial responsibility, as · 
it deems necessary. 

4 



FOR HI-TOR ONLY- The COUNTY OF ROCKLAND shall be named as an 
additional insured on general liability insurance policies and policy endorsements, and 
the policies and policy endorsements shall provide that the insurance shall not be 
cancelled or terminated without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the County of 
Rockland. Unless and until RECIPIENT obtains such insurance, this Memorandum 
Receipt shall not be effective and no monies shall be paid or given to the RECIPIENT. 

11. LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK: This Memorandum Receipt shall 
be governed by the Laws of the State of New York. 

12. LABOR LAW AND EXECUTIVE LAW: The RECIPIENT shall comply 
with all of the provisions of the Labor Law of the State of New York including, but not 
limited to, prevailing wage provisions, if required by law, and with Article 15 of the 
Executive Law of the State of New York relating to unlawful discriminatory practices 
insofar as the provisions are applicable to the work and/or services to be performed under 
this Memorandum Receipt. 

13. LOCAL LAWS AND RESOLUTIONS: The RECIPIENT shall comply with 
all local laws and resolutions of the Legislature of Rockland County, including, but not 
limited to, the resolution authorizing payment of funds identified in this Memorandum 
Receipt to the RECIPIENT pursuant to County Law §224, and the filing of Disclosure 
Statements and Mfirmative Action Plans, if required by law or resolution. 

14. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE RECIPIENT: 
RECIPIENT represents and warrants to the COUNTY as follows: 

(a) RECIPIENT is a corporation duly organized not-for-profit 
organization, validly existing under the laws of New York, and is du1y 
qualified to do business in New York. RECIPIENT has full power and 
authority to conduct its business as now carried on, and to carry out and 
perfonn its undertakings and obligations as provided herein. The 
execution and delivery by RECIPIENT of this Memorandum Receipt and 
the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein have been duly 
authorized by the Board of Directors or applicable body or officer of 
RECIPIENT and will not conflict with or breach any provision of the 
Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws of RECIPIENT. The copies of the 
documents pertaining to the organization of the RECIPIENT provided by 
RECIPIENT to the COUNTY are true and complete copies of said 
documents. 

(b) No action, approval, consent or authorization, including without 
limitation any action, approval, consent or authorization of · any 
governmental or quasi-governmental RECIPIENT, corrimission, board, 
bureau or instrumentality, is necessary for RECIPIENT to constitute this 
Memorandum Receipt the binding and enforceable obligation of 
RECIPIENT or to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. 

5 



(c) There are no violations of any law or governmental rule or regulation 
pending or, to the best of RECIPIENT's knowledge, threatened against 
RECIPIENT. The RECIPIENT has complied with all ·laws and 
governmental rules and regulations applicable to its business operations. 

(d) There are no judgments, liens, suits, actions or proceedings pending or, 
to the best of RECIPIENT's knowledge, threatened against RECIPIENT. 
The RECIPIENT is not a party to, subject to or bound by any agreement 
or any judgment or decree of any court, governmental body or arbitrator 
which would conflict with or be breached by the execution, delivery or 
performance of this Memorandum Receipt, or which could prevent the 
carrying out of the transactions provided for in this Memorandum Receipt, 
or which could prevent the performance of its obligations under this 
Memorandum Receipt or adversely affect the conduct of its business. 

(e) The RECIPIENT has filed each tax return, including without limitation 
all income, excise, property, gain, sales, franchise and license tax returns, 
required to be filed by the RECIPIENT prior to the date hereof. Each such 
return is true, complete and correct, and the RECIPIENT has paid all 
taxes, assessments and charges of any governmental authority required to 
be paid by it, including but not limited to any County, Town, Village real 
property tax or School tax, and has created reserves or made provision for 
all taxes accrued but not yet payable. No government is now asserting, or 
to RECIPIENT's knowledge threatening to assert, any deficiency or as
sessment for additional taxes or any interest, penalties or fines with respect 
to the RECIPIENT. 

(t) The financial statements, balance sheets and other information 
pertaining to the RECIPIENT and provided to the COUNTY are true, 
correct and complete as of the dates and for the periods set forth therein; 
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles consistently applied; and fairly represent the financial position 
of the RECIPIENT at such dates and for such periods. The RECIPIENT 
had at said dates no liabilities or obligations of any kind, contingent or 
otherwise, not reflected in the financial statements provided to the 
COUNTY. Since said dates and periods, there has been no material 
adverse change in the financial condition, assets or liabilities of the 
RECIPIENT. 

15. NO ASSIGNMENT: The RECIPIENT carmot assign, sublet or transfer or 
otherwise dispose of its interest in the funds described in this Memorandum Receipt 
without a duly adopted resolution of the Legislature of Rockland County authorizing such 
assignment or transfer. 

16. APPROVAL OF FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL RECIPIENT: 

6 



Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Memorandum Receipt, the COUNTY shall 
not be liable for any payment or compensation to the RECIPIENT until the services 
rendered by the RECIPIENT under this Memorandum Receipt meet the approval and 
standards of any other Federal, State or local agency, authority, commission or body, 
which has jurisdiction over the services to be rendered under this Memorandum Receipt 
which provides funding in whole or in part for the services provided under this 
Memorandum Receipt. 

17. FUND RAISING: All fund raising affairs of the RECIPIENT shall be 
included within the borders of Rockland County, whenever possible, pursuant to 
Resolution No. 119 of 1992. 

18. NATURE OF MEMORANDUM RECEIPT. This Memorandum Receipt is 
not a contract or agreement between the parties. This document, as described by Section 
224 of the New York State County Law and its County legislation authorizing its terms, 
sets forth certain conditions, undertakings and obligations of the RECIPIENT. This 
Memorandum Receipt creates no obligations on the part of the COUNTY including any 
obligation for the payment of the funds described in this Memorandum Receipt or its 
related legislation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the RECIPIENT executes this Memorandum 
Receipt this __ day of 2016. 

By: 
~~~-~~------
(presiding officer) 
President 

Dated: ____ _ 

By: ------------
Treasurer (disbursing officer) 

Dated: ___ _ 

7 



DRAFT 

Introduced by: Referral No. 
Han. Vincent Tyer, Sponsor 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF$ TO 

RAYMOND W. DEMEO LA VFW POST 1615 
ORANGEBURG, NEW YORK 

FOR PATRIOTIC OBSERVANCES 1N 2016 

WHEREAS, the Rockland County Legislature has set aside in the 2016 Budget and designated an 
account for funding of patriotic observances; and 

WHEREAS, the Raymond W .. DeMeola VFW Post 1615, Orangeburg, New York, is contracting 
with the County of Rockland to conduct patriotic observances in 2016 for the citizens of Rockland County in 
memory of all those who have served and/or died for their Country; and 

WHEREAS, the Committee has met, considered and by. a 
_______ vote, approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, that the Legislature of Rockland County hereby appropriates the sum of$ to 
the Raymond W. DeMeola VFW Post 1615, Orangeburg, New York, for providing patriotic observance 
events in Rockland County in calendar year 20 16; and be it further· 

RESOLVED, that the Commissioner of Finance is hereby authorized to increase and decrease the 
following accounts in the amounts indicated: 

Increase Approp. Acct.: 
A-CA- 7659-5010 

Decrease Approp. Acct.: 
A-LEG-1010-5042 

LG2016-16 
ELY/cs 
2/19/"6 

GENERAL FUND 

Raymond W. DeMeola VFW Post 1615 
102 Swannekin Road 
Blauvelt, NY 10913 

Patriotic Observances 

$ ___ _ 

$ __ _ 



Introduced by: 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
INCREASING NEW YORK STATE CIVIL SERVICE 

EXAMINATION APPLICATION FEES 

WHEREAS, Section 23 of the New York State Civil Service Law authorizes the New 
York State Department of Civil Service to charge fees for their administration of civil service 
examinations, including the scheduling and rating of such examinations; and 

WHEREAS, Section 50 (5)(a) of the New York State Civil Service Law provides for 
examination application fees for positions in the competitive and non-competitive classes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 50 (5)(b) of the New York State Civil Service Law requires that 
application fees be waived for individuals who certify that they are unemployed and primarily 
responsible for the support of a household, or who are recipients of public assistance; and 

WHEREAS, By Resolution No. 29 of 2012, the Legislature of Rockland County 
provided for application fees for New York State Civil Service examinations given in the County 
of Rockland; and 

WHEREAS, The Cormnissioner of Personnel has requested an increase in civil service 
examination fees, in order to address rising costs for civil service examinations and to continue 
to administer New York State Civil Service examinations in a cost effective marmer; and 

WHEREAS, Such increases in civil service examination fees are provided in Schedule 
A, armexed hereto and made part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, The Cormnissioner of Personnel has also recommended that fee waivers for 
eligible applicants be maintained in order to comply with the New York State Civil Service Law 
and to encourage employment for all of the citizens of the County of Rockland, while continuing 
to ensure fiscally responsible policies; and 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature has met, considered and 
approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That application fees for New York State Civil Service examinations given 
in the County of Rockland for titles in the competitive class shall be implemented as provided in 
Schedule A, effective March 5, 2016; and be it further 



RESOLVED, That application fees for New York State Civil Service examinations given 
in the County of Rockland for titles in the competitive class shall continue to be waived for each 
applicant for examination who certifies that he/she is unemployed and primarily responsible for 
the support of a household or is a recipient of public assistance; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Rockland County Department of Personnel shall continue to 
implement administrative tasks and procedures as are required to carry out the provisions of this 
resolution, including methods of certification for individuals who are unemployed and primarily 
responsible for the support of a household or are recipients of public assistance. 

LHRIVWJ:dc 
2015-05796 
115/2016 



SCHEDULE A 

Fees for Application for New York State Civil Service Examinations 

New York State scheduled & rated examinations (non-law enforcement titles) $25.00 per exam 

New York State scheduled & rated examinations (law enforcement titles) $50.00 per exam 

Decentralized examinations $25.00 per exam 



;A 
-~ 

Introduced by: Referral No.. 4 3 'i 4 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
APPROVING AGREEMENT WITH 

HARJUSBEACH,PLLC 
IN EXCESS OF $100,000 FOR BOND 

COUNSEL SERVICES UNDER RFP-RC-2015-012 
FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTRACT FINALIZATION 

THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016 WITH AN OPTION 
TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE YEAR 
TERMS AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE 

AGREEMENT BY THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
[DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE] 

($120,000) 

WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing advertised for proposals for bond counsel 
services to the county of Rockland under RFP-RC-2015-012; and 

WHEREAS, Through the electronic bid notification system, seventy-nine firms were 
notified of the solicitation; nineteen firms downloaded the specifications, proposals were 
received from four firms: Harris Beach, PLLC; Hawkins Delafield & Wood, LLP; Orrick 
Herrington & Sutcliffe, LLP; and Squire Sanders (US), LLP; and 

WHEREAS, The proposals were reviewed by an evaluation committee comprised of 
members from the Department of Law and the Department of Finance, and there was a short list 
comprised of the top four firms who were interviewed via teleconference and Best and Final 
pricing was requested and received; and 

WHEREAS, Based upon the written proposal evaluations, the interviews and follow-up 
cost proposal submitted, and compatibility of judgment, the County Attorney has determined that 
Harris Beach, PLLC is the finn which would offer the best value to the County; and recommends 
that the County enter into a contract with Harris Beach, PLLC for bond counsel services; and 

WHEREAS, The Director of Purchasing and the County Attorney request that the 
Legislature approve an agreement with Harris Beach, PLLC, 455 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 1206, 
White Plains, New York 10601, for bond counsel services under RFP-RC-2015-012, in an 
amount not to exceed $120,000 for the period from contract finalization to December 31, 2016, 
with the option to renew for two (2) additional one year terms; and 

WHEREAS, The retention of bond counsel, a · legal specialty which implements 
specialized knowledge and reputation in the legal community is necessary as these are skills and 



characteristics not held in the Department of Law or any other department in the administration; 
and 

WHEREAS, Services of bond counsel are necessary to the Department of Finance and 
the Department of Law for the issuance of bonds for the financing of capital improvements; and 

WHEREAS, With the exception of Revenue Anticipation Notes and Tax Anticipation 
Notes, the funds required for this agreement are incidental to the cost of the capital investment 
financed by the bond and require no additional increase in the 2016 Budget of the Department of 
Law; and 

WHEREAS, Sufficient funds exist in the 2016 Adopted Budget of the Department of 
Law and the2016 Adopted Capital Budget; and 

WHEREAS, Local Law No. 18 of 1996 provides for the Legislature to approve 
"execution of ali contracts in excess of $100,000 entered into by the County;" and 

WHEREAS, The· Committee of the Legislature has met, considered . 
and approved this resolution; now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, That the Legislature of Rockland County hereby approves entering into an 
agreement with Harris Beach, PLLC, 455 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 1206, White Plains, New 
York 10601, for bond counsel services under RFP-RC-2015-012, in an amount not to exceed 
$120,000 for the period from contract fmalization to December 31, 2016, with the option to 
renew for two (2) additional one . year terms; and authorizes its execution by the County 
Executive, subject to the approval of the County Attorney; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That sufficient funds exist in the 2016 Adopted Budget of the Department 
of Law and the 2016 Adopted Capital Budget. 

TH:mf 
2016-00185 
1-19-16 



Introduced by: Referral No. 

RESOLUTION NO. OF 2016 
ESTABLISHING ONE POSITION IN THE 

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES AND 
ABOLISHING ONE POSITION IN THE 

DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH IN CONNECTION 
~THTHEROCKLANDCOUNTYDRUGCOURTPROGRAM 

[DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL] 

WHEREAS, The Department of Mental Health has provided support to the 
Rockland County Drug Court in order to facilitate the goals of said court; and 

WHEREAS, The Department of Mental Health will no longer provide such 
services, said services shall instead be provided by existing staff in the Department of 
Social Services; and 

WHEREAS, The Commissioner of Social Services has requested the 
establishment of one position to also continue .essential employment-related services to 
clients of the Department of Social Services; and 

WHEREAS, The Department of Personnel has reviewed a job description for one 
position and has made an appropriate civil service classification; and 

WHEREAS, The Commissioner of Social Services is requesting no additional 
funds to establish this position as sufficient funds will be transferred from the Department 
of Mental Health; and 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature has met, reviewed 
and approved the establishment of this position, now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That one position of Employment Assistant I, position#-,--,---,
(SG 11 - $41,667 - $50,248) be hereby established in the Department of Social Services -
601 0; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the position of Substance Abuse Counselor I, position #8072 
(SG 54- $47,763- $57,762) be hereby concurrently abolished in the Department of 
Mental Health; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Commissioner ofFinance is hereby authorized to increase 
(and decrease) the following accounts in the amounts indicated: 



GENERALCA) FUND 

Increase Approp. Acct. (Credit): 
A-DSS-6010-EllOO Salaries, Employees 
A-DSS-6010-El930 Social Security 
A-DSS-6010-E1980 MTA Mobility Tax 
TOTAL 

Decrease Approp. Acct. (Debit): 
A-TRF-9525-E9010 Contribution to County Hospital (EH) Fund 
TOTAL 

HOSPITAL CEH) FUND 

Decrease Approp. Acct. (Debit): 
EH-DMH-M760-Ell00 Salaries, Employees 
EH-DMH-M760- El930 Social Security 
EH-DMH-M760- E1980 MTA Mobility Tax 
TOTAL 

Decrease Est. Rev. Acct. (Credit): 
EH-UNC-4982-R2810 Contribution from General (A) Fund 
TOTAL 

VWJ:dc 
2016-00365 
2-2-16 

34,720 
2,660 

120 
37,500 

37,500 
37,500 

34,720 
2,660 

120 
37,500 

37,500 
37,500 



Introduced by: ReferralNo. ;:)CcJJV 

RESOLUTION NO OF 2016 
CORRECTION OF 2016 TAX ROLLS 

TOWN OF RAMAPO 
KEVLIN L YUDMYLA FAMILY TRUST 

PROPERTY ID# 62.6-1-39 
16 HIDDEN GLENN LANE 

MONSEY, NEW YORK 10952 
[DIVISION OF REAL PROPERTY TAX SERVICES] 

WHEREAS, An application for the correction of the tax rolls for the 2016 Town 
and County Real Property Taxes levied against property located in the Town of Ramapo 
as indicated on the annexed Schedule "A", has been filed by the Kevlin Lyudmyla 
Family Trust with the Real Property Tax Service Officer, pursuant to §556 of the Real 
Property Tax Law; and 

WHEREAS, Homeowner filed in a timely mauner for the Senior Partial Tax 
Exemption and qualified for 50% discount, but the exemption was removed in error, 
creating a clerical error on the 2015/2016 re-levied school bill and the 2016 County and 
Town bill; and 

WHEREAS, This created a clerical error on the 2016 Tax Roll; and 

WHEREAS, The tax amount of$15,863.10 on the 2016 County and Town bill to 
be corrected to read $7,277.43 and a new bill be issued in the amount of$7,277.43; and 

WHEREAS, The correction is over $1,000.00 and requires Legislative approval; 
and 

WHEREAS, The Real Property Tax Services Officer has investigated the 
·application in accordance with the requirements of Section 554 and 556 of the Real 
Property Tax Law; and 

WHEREAS, The Real Property Tax Services Officer has recommended approval 
of said application; and 

WHEREAS, The Committee of the Legislature has met, considered and 
approved this resolution, now, therefore, be it 



RESOLVED, That the Rockland County Legislature hereby approves the 
application, as indicated on the annexed Schedule "A", for correction of the 2016 Town 
and County tax rolls and hereby requests that the o!T!cer having jurisdiction of the tax roil 
correct such tax roll and issue a new tax bill accordingly. 

AFR:vma 
2016-00378 
2/8/16 



SCHEDULE A 
Town of Ramapo 

OWNER: KEVLIN LYUDMYLA FAMILY TRUST 

PROPERTY ID#: 62.6-1-39 

CORRECTION: TAX AMOUNT ON THE 2016 COUNTY & TOWN TAX 
ROLL BE CORRECTED TO READ$ 7,277.43 AND A NEW 
BILL BE ISSUED. 

REASON: HOMEOWNER FILED IN A TIMELY MANNER FOR THE 
SENIOR PARTIAL TAX EXEMPTION AND QUALIFIED 
FOR 50% DISCOUNT, BUT THEN THE EXEMPTION 
WAS REMOVED IN ERROR. CREATING A CLERICAL 
ERROR ON THE 2015/2016 RE-LEVIED SCHOOL BILL 
AND THE 2016 COUNTY AND TOWN BILL. 
(CORRECTION OF ERRORS TAX LAW §171-U). 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION IS ATTACHED. 



Introduced by: Referral No. j~J Y 

RESOLUTION NO OF 2016 
CORRECTION OF 2016 TAX ROLLS 

TOWN OF ORANGETOWN 
ARTHUR HIGGINS AND LORI HIGGINS 

PROPERTY ID# 74.06-2-58 
82 DUTCH HOLLOW DRIVE 

ORANGEBURG, NEW YORK 10962 
[DIVISION OF REAL PROPERTY TAX SERVICES] 

WHEREAS, An application for the correction of the tax rolls for the 2016 Town 
and County Real Property Taxes levied against property located in the Town of 
Orangetown as indicated on the annexed Schedule "A", has been filed by Arthur Higgins 
with the Real Property Tax Service Officer, pursuant to §556 of the Real Property Tax 
Law; and 

WHEREAS, The 2015/2016 School bill was paid in full on September 26, 2015 
but the payment was never posted to the homeowner account therefore creating a clerical 
error by re-levying the school tax onto the 2016 County and Town bill with 7% re-levy 
penalty; and 

WHEREAS, This created a clerical error on the 2016 Tax Roll; and 

WHEREAS, The tax amount of $11,652.40 on the 2016 County and Town bill to 
be corrected to read $5,157.18 and a new bill be issued in the amount of$5,157.18; and 

WHEREAS, The correction is over $1,000.00 and requires Legislative approval; 
and 

WHEREAS, The Real Property Tax Services Officer has investigated the 
application in accordance with the requirements of Section 554 and 556 of the Real 
Property Tax Law; and 

WHEREAS, The Real Property Tax Services Officer has reconunended approval 
of said application; and 

WHEREAS, The Conunittee of the Legislature has met, considered and 
approved this resolution, now, therefore, be it 



RESOLVED, That the Rockland County Legislature hereby approves the 
application, as indicated on the annexed Schedule "A", for correction of the 2016 Town 
and County tax rolls and hereby requests that the officer having jurisdiction of the tax roll 
correct such tax roll and issue a new tax bill accordingly. 

AFR:vma 
2016-00377 
2/8/16 



OWNER: 

SCHEDULE A 
Town of Orangetown 

ARTHUR & LORI HIGGINS 

PROPERTY ID#: 74.06-2-58 

CORRECTION: TAX AMOUNT ON THE 2016 COUNTY & TOWN TAX 
ROLL BE CORRECTED TO READ$ 5,157.18 AND A NEW 
BILL BE ISSUED. 

REASON: 2015/2016 SCHOOL BILL WAS PAID IN FULL ON 
SEPTEMBER26, 2015. PAYMENT WAS NEVER 
POSTED TO THE HOMEOWNER'S ACCOUNT 
LEVYING THE SCHOOL ONTO THE 2016 COUNTY AND 
TOWN BILL WITH 7% RE-LEVY PENALTY. BACK UP 
DOCUMENTATION IS ATTACHED. (CORRECTION OF 
ERRORS TAX LAW §171-U). 


